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PROGRAMME:  CRADLE OF HUMANKIND 
WORLD HER ITAGE S ITE 4.1

The Cradle of Humankind was declared a World Heritage Site by 
the United Nations Educational, Scientific and Cultural Organi-
sation (UNESCO) on 2 December 1999. Since then, this unique 
area not far from Johannesburg and spanning some 50 000 
hectares, has yielded some of the most incredible fossil finds of 
extinct fauna, particularly fossils of ancient human ancestors 
dating as far back as more than 3 million years before present. 
Together with the Makapan Valley site in Limpopo Province and 
the Taung Child site in North West Province, these three sites 
constitute what UNESCO has inscribed as “the Fossil Hominid 
Sites of South Africa.”

COH Skull of predator or gorgonopsian 

PROGRAMME: CRADLE OF HUMANKIND WORLD HERITAGE SITE 
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These are indeed sites of outstanding universal value because 
of the wealth of significant hominin fossils that have been 
unearthed including Mrs Ples, Little Foot, the Taung Child 
skull and the recently described Australopithecus sediba, 
revealed to the world by Professor Lee Berger of the University 
of the Witwatersrand in April 2010. The A. sediba fossils have 
been dated at an astoundingly precise 1.97 million years 
before present. It offers an incredible window into our distant 
past and how we have evolved as a species. 

4.1 Programme: Cradle of Humankind World Heritage Site 

    The Cradle of Humankind was 
declared a World Heritage Site by 
UNESCO on 2 December 1999. 

4.1.1. Introduction and Overview of Performance

The sites of Malapa and the newly excavated Rising Star Cave, 
together with the world famous Sterkfontein Caves, have 
become the richest early human ancestor sites on the planet. 
Work on A. sediba alone has been featured in a large number 
of prestigious scientific works as well as the popular media 
including National Geographic, Scientific American, Time and 
many other media. The Malapa site still holds precious fossil 
material and excavations are likely to continue at this site 
into the foreseeable future. The site is also situated in one 
of the more pristine areas in the Cradle of Humankind World 
Heritage Site (COH WHS).

This incredible World Heritage Site is managed on behalf 
of the Minister of Environmental Affairs by the Cradle of 
Humankind World Heritage Site Management Authority (COH 
WHS MA).The primary goal of the COH WHS MA is to protect 
and preserve the site using existing laws and regulations 
while at the same time offering interpretation for the site. 

PROGRAMME: CRADLE OF HUMANKIND WORLD HERITAGE SITE 
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The world famous Sterkfontein Caves continues to attract 
many visitors.  It includes an informative exhibition and offers 
the opportunity for a guided tour of the caves.  
  
In the 15 years since its listing as a World Heritage Site, 
the Management Authority has progressively implemented 
a master plan for the site. There are many challenges with 
regard to development pressure and tourism development, 
amongst others, but the strides made thus far have ensured 
that the site is protected and is steadily growing and earning a 
reputation as an iconic site of global significance and a ‘must 
see’ tourism destination in South Africa.  

4.1 Programme: Cradle of Humankind World Heritage Site 

The Authority also helps to promote further scientific 
research, encourages community participation that will 
benefit local communities and assists in stimulating tourism 
and ultimately local economic development. This is done 
through implementation of measures and projects that will 
ensure the conservation and protection of the natural and 
cultural resources associated with the site, while at the 
same time presenting tangible benefits and interpretation for 
surrounding communities, and the public at large. 

The official interpretation centre of the site is called Maropeng 
which means ‘returning to the place of origins’ in Setswana.  
Maropeng was officially opened to the public in December 
2005. This architecturally unique centre allows every visitor to 
embark on a journey of discovery that begins with the birth of 
our planet and moves through the history of humankind and 
into the future. Maropeng also has an original fossil display 
area where fossils are replenished regularly, education and 
conferencing facilities, a boutique hotel with incredible views 
and a restaurant. 

PROGRAMME: CRADLE OF HUMANKIND WORLD HERITAGE SITE 
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4.1 Programme: Cradle of Humankind World Heritage Site 

PROGRAMME: CRADLE OF HUMANKIND WORLD HERITAGE SITE 

4.1.1.2 Unit Strategic Goal and Objectives

There are a number of initiatives that are currently being 
implemented by the MA in the Cradle of Humankind World 
Heritage Site. The destination is fast becoming increasingly 
popular with the cycling fraternity. Cycle lanes have been 
constructed and the first phase of a mountain bike trail has 
been built - making this a cycling destination of choice in 
Gauteng. A fossil casting project and a craft beneficiation 
programme employing local community members have 
been successfully implemented in the project area and the 
Management Authority will continue to sponsor schools 
from the surrounding areas for excursions to Maropeng and 
Sterkfontein as part of its outreach programme.  

The main focus of the MA for this acclaimed World Heritage 
Site into the future remains the protection and preservation 
of the elements which constitute what UNESCO terms the 
Outstanding Universal Value (OUV) of the site. 

These are the existing proclaimed fossil sites, as well as 
the biophysical environment in which the existing and as yet 
undiscovered sites are located. 

This is done through implementation of measures and projects 
that will ensure the conservation and protection of the natural 
and cultural resources associated with the site while at the 
same time ensuring tangible benefits and interpretation 
for surrounding communities and the public at large. The 
encouragement of tourism development as an economic 
driver enhances the Management Authority’s mandate in 
terms of its heritage and conservation responsibility within 
the broader Gauteng Tourism environment.       

The World Heritage site cannot be managed in isolation 
from the stakeholders and communities directly impacted 
on by the site. A greater impetus will be given to forging 
closer ties with all stakeholders in collectively managing 
and preserving this amazing South African treasure for 
current and future generations of the world.
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4.1 Programme: Cradle of Humankind World Heritage Site 

PROGRAMME: CRADLE OF HUMANKIND WORLD HERITAGE SITE 

The Cradle of Humankind World Heritage Site Unit has the 
following sub-units: 

a) Interpretation Centre Complex (management of the official 
visitor centre); 

b) Public Participation and Community Projects (includes the 
management of the Cradle Trust);

c) Integrated Conservation and Environment Management 
and Land Use Management in terms of the relevant legislation 
such as the National Environmental Protected Areas Act 
(NEMPAA), The National Environmental Management Act 
(NEMA) and the World Heritage Convention Act (WHCA), 
amongst others;

d) Orientation Centres/Infrastructure Management (includes 
roads maintenance, signage etc). 

The Interpretation Centre Complex (ICC) sub-programme 
manages the visitor centres and museums in the COH WHS, 
namely Sterkfontein Caves and Maropeng.

The Public Participation and Community Projects 
sub-programme creates awareness of the project, manages 
public participation activities and assists the community to 
participate in the economic opportunities presented by the 
site through SMME development, training and learnership 
programmes and the implementation of community projects. 

In addition, the Fundraising element of the sub unit is 
responsible for, in addition to fundraising activities, managing 
the established Cradle Trust which oversees implementation 
and disbursement of funds for community projects and 
promotion of further scientific research. 
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The Integrated Environment and Conservation sub 
programme manages all work related to the conservation and 
environmental management of the site within the context of 
the OUV of the site, including management of the fossil sites. 

This sub-programme is also responsible for the institutional 
arrangements and management of the COH WHS in 
co-operation with the National Department of Environmental 
Affairs, and the Management Authorities for the Taung Child 
Skull World Heritage Site and the Makapan Valley World 
Heritage Site.    

The Integrated Environment and Conservation sub-programme 
also includes a Land Use Management sub-unit, which 
manages all development applications in the World Heritage 
Site in terms of the appropriate legislation. This unit is also 
currently responsible for the implementation of a system of 
mountain bike trails in the World Heritage Site. 

All institutional arrangements and engagements with 
UNESCO are managed through this sub unit. 

The Orientation Centres/Infrastructure unit is primarily 
responsible for all infrastructure and signage related matters 
in the World Heritage Site and works closely with a number of 
partners and stakeholders, such as the Gauteng Department 
of Roads and Transport (GDRT) and landowners. 

4.1 Programme: Cradle of Humankind World Heritage Site 

PROGRAMME: CRADLE OF HUMANKIND WORLD HERITAGE SITE 
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IMPLEMENTATION OF THE MASTER PLAN 

4.1.2.1 Maropeng and Sterkfontein Interpretation 
Centres 

The main shareholder (Stefanutti Stocks) in the Public Private 
Partnership (PPP) agreement for the management of the 
visitor centres in the COH WHS withdrew from the contract in 
July 2010. There has been no new shareholder that has been 
identified to continue with the PPP arrangement. 

The exit by Stefanutti Stocks left the Concessor Parties (GPG 
and Wits University) without an operator and a decision was 
taken at Provincial level to appoint an interim public institution 
(represented by GPG and Wits) to regulate the operations of 
Maropeng a’ Afrika Leisure (Pty) Ltd. 

In order for GPG to gain a better understanding on the options 

available to ensure the sustainable continuation of the project, 
Grant Thornton Strategic Solutions were appointed in 2012 to 
evaluate the operations of the project and to identify solutions 
and options for the future management and development of 
the visitor facilities. They concluded their analysis report and 
submitted their findings in March 2013. 

Following a Cabinet decision to advertise for a new private 
partner in the PPP agreement, a task team, including Wits, 
Provincial and National Treasury representatives and the 
Management Authority finalised an Expression of Interest 
document in October 2013 which was approved by the 
Maropeng Board in January 2014. The process of advertising 
for a new shareholder is currently underway and it is expected 
that this process will be finalised in the first quarter of the 
new financial year.  

IMPLEMENTATION OF THE MASTER PLAN 

4.1.2
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 4.1.2 Implementation of the Master Plan

Provincial government has been continuing to fund the 
operational losses of Maropeng in the year under review, 
although Maropeng has been breaking even and in some 
quarters of the financial year actually showing a profit, albeit 
a minimal one. The project is currently being managed jointly 
by Wits and GPG. 

The upgrade of the exhibition at Sterkfontein and Maropeng, 
as well as the installation of additional external infrastructure 
improvements at Maropeng are currently underway. 

4.1.2.2 Public Participation and Community Benefit

As part of the mandate of the Management Authority in terms 
of including communities in the overall management of the 
site, 10 schools from the surrounding local community are 
sponsored to visit the centres of Maropeng and Sterkfontein 
annually. This is part of the broader outreach programme and 
the visitor centres act as a valuable resource for teacher and 
learners alike as the subject of evolution is part of the national 
curriculum. 

This project has been ongoing for a number of years. 
Open public meetings are held annually to inform stakeholders 
in the World Heritage Site about progress with projects and 
updates regarding the overall management of the site. A set 
of public meetings were held in November 2013 in the project 
area.  These are held at different geographic locations within 
the site to be able to reach as many of the affected stakeholders 
as possible.   

An Arts and Craft Community Beneficiation project was 
established in 2012 involving local community members. The 
project involved training of 31 crafters in the development, 
production and marketing of craft-works, with themes related 
to the project area. The second phase of the project entailed 
mentorship and training programmes for the established 
five primary and one secondary cooperative. The established 
cooperatives were assisted in setting up a stall at the Maropeng 
visitor centre. Further mentoring and training programmes are 
planned in the future for these cooperatives and partnerships for 
the extension of the project are being explored with a number of 
different stakeholders. 

IMPLEMENTATION OF THE MASTER PLAN 
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In addition to the arts and craft initiative, a collaborative project 
with Wits University employing local community members as 
fossil casters was also established in the reporting period. 
This fossil casting facility is functional and operates from 
the Sterkfontein Caves site. This project has recruited local 
community members to be trained in fossil casting skills and 
has created a number of employment opportunities, as well 
as ensuring that high quality casts of scientifically important 
fossils are available to the scientific community, as well as to 
the general public.

The Cradle Trust continues to be managed at an administrative 
level.  The fund has remained dormant due to the failure of 
the PPP agreement in terms of the Concession Contract to 
generate funds.  A colloquium involving our Wits partners 
and various other stakeholders was held within the reporting 
period to look at the future of the COH WHS within an inclusive 
economy approach.

 4.1.2 Implementation of the Master Plan

IMPLEMENTATION OF THE MASTER PLAN 
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 4.1.2 Implementation of the Master Plan

Arts and Craft Community Beneficiation project, COH WHS. 

IMPLEMENTATION OF THE MASTER PLAN 
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HER ITAGE AND ENVIRONMENTAL 
MANAGEMENT

4.1.3.1 Integrated Environment and Conservation 
Management

This sub-programme is responsible for the physical 
conservation of both natural and cultural resources that 
reside within the proclaimed World Heritage Site.  Because the 
fossils have been preserved as a result of natural processes 
and are the raison d’ etre for the listing of the site on the World 
Heritage List, the conservation and protection of the geology 
and more specifically, the dolomitic (Karst) environment and 
associated grasslands is as important as the management of 
the fossil sites themselves. The management and protection 
of the fossil sites are inextricably linked to the health and 
management of the biophysical environment.

To ensure that the site is managed in terms of the prescriptions 
of United Nations Educational and Scientific Council 

(UNESCO) and the World Heritage Convention Act, measures 
have been taken to have the site properly proclaimed and a 
proper boundary and buffer demarcated. 

Management activities in the reporting period included the 
continued implementation of a land use management plan 
aimed at controlling undesirable development that may have 
a negative impact on the site, which could in turn threaten its 
status as a World Heritage Site. This unit also ensures that 
each of the nationally registered fossil sites are managed and 
excavated in terms of best practice guidelines. Fossil sites are 
inspected twice a year by the Management Authority and the 
South African Heritage Resources Agency (SAHRA) and rec-
ommendations are made on the management of each of the 
fossil sites. 

HERITAGE AND ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT

4.1.3
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4.1.3 Heritage and Environmental Management

A collaborative partnership with Wits University in the reporting 
period has finalised the protection of the Malapa fossil site 
through the construction of a protective dome over the site 
that will allow continued excavations to proceed while at the 
same time accommodating low impact tourism activities. This 
is a first of its kind in the World Heritage Site. The partnership 
has also finalised arrangements for the rehabilitation of the 
Gladysvale Fossil Site through the conclusion of the landowner 
agreement between Wits and the Nash family.   

The sustainable management of the Highveld Grassland 
habitat is critical for the natural systems and processes to 
function normally which in turn will protect the important 
fossils found throughout the site.  The implementation 
of biodiversity management strategies thus becomes 
as important as protecting the site from inappropriate 
development.  The formation of privately owned protected 
areas is becoming an important strategy to counter poor 
infrastructure development, unscrupulous development and 
urban creep.

HERITAGE AND ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT

Fossil in rock COH WHS. 
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4.1.3 Heritage and Environmental Management

The Working on Fire Programme is implemented in the project 
area by Department of Environmental Affairs (DEA). Twenty 
five people are employed from the local community through 
this programme. The re-promulgation of the Management 
Authority by DEA is still pending, following consultation 
with the National Minister of Environmental Affairs. The 
Management Authority is represented at DEA meetings by the 
Programme Manager, who sits on the South African World 
Heritage Convention Committee meetings as well as the Joint 
Management Committee for the Fossil Hominid Sites of South 
Africa. 

The key deliverable of this sub-unit is the overall management 
of development applications in the World Heritage Site.  This 
function has been critically impeded during the reporting 
period under review by the failure of DEA to follow the 
necessary procedures to ensure the required proclamation 
and delegation authorising the Management Authority to fulfil 
its function. 

Water is an important driver of the dolomitic environment 
and the fossil-forming processes. Management of surface 
and groundwater in the World Heritage Site is crucial for 
the protection of the sensitive Karst environment. It is 
through the implementation of a water monitoring plan that 
the Management Authority is able to gauge the severity of 
the threat posed by Acid Mine Drainage (AMD) and other 
water polluting threats to the site. A detailed surface and 
groundwater study has been concluded.  

The purpose of the study was to understand all possible 
sources of contamination. This study has revealed the 
hydro vulnerability status of each of the fossil sites. A water 
monitoring programme is in place with the Council for 
Scientific and Industrial Research (CSIR) which provides two 
reports annually on the status of the groundwater in the COH 
WHS. A report on the monitoring of AMD is due to UNESCO in 
February 2015.    

HERITAGE AND ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT
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The procedural challenges to obtain final approval and 
publish the necessary notices in the Government Gazette are 
currently being addressed by DEA. 

The most important achievement for this sub-unit in the 
reporting period was the construction of the first phase of the 
Mountain Bike Trail project. This is the first part of a broader 
strategy for the implementation of a system of mountain 
bike trails in the World Heritage Site which lend support to 
the non-motorised initiatives of the Gauteng Department of 
Roads and Transport (GDRT). 

4.1.3.2 Land Use Management National 
Environmental Management Protected Areas Act 
(NEMPAA)

4.1.3 Heritage and Environmental Management

HERITAGE AND ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT

The key deliverable of this sub-unit is the overall management 
of development applications in the World Heritage Site.  This 
function has been critically impeded during the reporting 
period under review by the failure of DEA to follow the 
necessary procedures to ensure the required proclamation 
and delegation authorising the Management Authority to fulfil 
its function. The procedural challenges to obtain final approval 
and publish the necessary notices in the Government Gazette 
are currently being addressed by DEA. 

The most important achievement for this sub-unit in the 
reporting period was the construction of the first phase of the 
Mountain Bike Trail project. This is the first part of a broader 
strategy for the implementation of a system of mountain 
bike trails in the World Heritage Site which lend support to 
the non-motorised initiatives of the Gauteng Department of 
Roads and Transport (GDRT). 
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4.1.3 Heritage and Environmental Management

The Gauteng Department of Roads and Transport (GDRT) 
reviewed the approach and recommendations by the project 
team and officially endorsed the approach, general design 
and best practice guidelines proposed by the feasibility study. 
As a result, the detailed design and construction of the first 
17 km of dedicated Mountain Bike trail was undertaken along 
the road reserve of the provincial roads within the Cradle of 
Humankind World Heritage Site (COH WHS) in the 2013/14 
financial year.   

HERITAGE AND ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT

     The key deliverable of this sub-
unit is the overall management of 
development applications in the 
World Heritage Site.
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INFRASTRUCTURE

The main deliverable of this unit in the reporting period related 
to the management of infrastructure related maintenance in 
the COH WHS. A task team with Gauteng Department of Roads 
and Transport (GDRT) was set up to address all infrastructure, 
maintenance, roads, signage and cycling issues in the COH 
WHS.   

This, together with the traffic calming measures project, 
and additional directional signage procured for the site, has 
contributed to creating a greater sense of place in the World 
Heritage Site.  This will contribute to improved navigation in 
the project area for both residents and visitors alike.   

INFRASTRUCTURE

4.1.4
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENTS

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENTS

The management of the site is executed in partnership with key 
stakeholders.  These include fossil site landowners, tertiary 
institutions like the University of the Witwatersrand (Wits), the 
different tiers of government (local, provincial and national) 
including provincial authorities of adjacent provinces such as 
Limpopo and the North West Province (serially listed with the 
Makapan Valley site and the Taung Child site respectively) and 
a range of other important stakeholders and agencies.

There has been significant national, international and local 
engagement within the reporting period, with strengthening 
of ties with a variety of these key stakeholders. The South 
African Heritage Resources Agency (SAHRA) is another key 
stakeholder in the management of the site.  

There is also a close working relationship between the 
Department of Environmental Affairs (DEA) and the MA. 

The MA is also represented at the South African World 
Heritage Committee meetings convened by DEA as well as the 
Joint Management Committee of the serially listed sites, i.e. 
The Fossil Hominid Sites of South Africa.  

A close working relationship with all these stakeholders is 
critical for the overall management of the World Heritage 
site. The involvement of all stakeholders is considered 
to be an integral part of the approach of the MA.  This is 
critical to improve on established relationships with critical 
stakeholders both within as well as outside of the physical 
environment of the World Heritage Site. 

4.1.5
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CHALLENGES AND OPPORTUNIT IES

CHALLENGES AND OPPORTUNITIES

4.1.6



24

A primary challenge for the MA in the current period in terms 
of the day to day management of the World Heritage site is the 
status of the MA. The promulgation notice of the MA expired in 
May 2011 and DEA are currently addressing this problem with 
the National Minister. DEA has indicated that the promulgation 
is imminent. This poses an enormous challenge for the MA 
in terms of development applications within the site.  There 
are also extensive legal ramifications associated with not 
being properly proclaimed as the Management Authority. It is 
anticipated that this will be resolved within the first quarter of 
the new financial year.  

The other challenge for the optimal functioning of the MA 
within the broader context of the World Heritage community 
in South Africa has been the merger process involving the 
incorporation of the COH WHS and Dinokeng projects under 
the umbrella body of Gauteng Tourism. This process has still 
not been concluded and presents its own internal challenges.    

Another focal challenge facing the Cradle of Humankind 
World Heritage Site (COH WHS) is the management of the 
site in consultation and collaboration with all stakeholders 
of the Cradle community in line with UNESCO’s Operational 
Guidelines for the Implementation of the World Heritage 
Convention.  

It is also important for the COH WHS Programme to put in 
place regulations that will assist the Management Authority 
to better manage development-related activities within 
the World Heritage Site and to ensure that benefits flow to 
communities living in and around the site. 

4.1.6 Challenges and Opportunities

    It is anticipated that this will 
be resolved within the first quar-
ter of the new financial year...

CHALLENGES AND OPPORTUNITIES
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4.1.6 Challenges and Opportunities

Therefore the forging of stronger ties with the communities 
and stakeholders of the COH WHS remains a crucial 
challenge for the MA in terms of managing the site. Much 
has been done to date in addressing this and it remains work 
in progress for the MA. The COH WHS is close to two major 
urban conurbations and urban encroachment is a real threat 
in terms of protection and preservation of the site for future 
generations. This is currently being managed in consultation 
with the relevant provincial and national authorities.

The management of the groundwater in the COH WHS which is 
a fundamental part of the Karst geology of the World Heritage 
Site can be cited as another major challenge for the MA. The 
threat from Acid Mine Drainage (AMD) on the fossil sites is 
largely restricted to those sites in the southern area, but 
mitigation measures to address AMD at the MA level as well 
as at a National Government level have resulted in drastic 
improvement in the quality of the water flowing through the 
system. This is closely and constantly monitored by the MA. 
A monitoring plan has been implemented by the MA as per 
recommendations from the extensive groundwater study that 

CHALLENGES AND OPPORTUNITIES

was undertaken which has been recognised by UNESCO and 
ICOMOS as best practice. The water study was commended 
at the 37th session of the World Heritage Committee meeting 
held in Cambodia in June 2013.  

The COH WHS is fast being recognised as one of the premier 
tourism destinations in South Africa and a site that holds 
immense significance for the world as it talks directly to 
the story of our ancient ancestors and remains one of the 
most prolific palaeoanthropological sites in the world. The 
phenomenal recent discoveries at the Malapa and Rising Star 
Cave sites are set to change the future face of palaeoanthro-
pology, with major announcements expected in the new year 
of the finds at the Rising Star site. 

There is a huge opportunity for the MA to develop the site 
in line with UNESCO prescriptions and open up the site for 
tourism development that will not only profile the site and 
its richness, but will directly benefit communities living in 
and around the site, as well as profile the country and the 
continent as the birthplace of humanity. 
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The main focus for the MA in the coming year is the protection 
and preservation of the elements which constitute the 
Outstanding Universal Value (OUV) of the site.  These elements 
are dominated by the existing fossil sites and the biophysical 
environment in which the fossil sites exist. This will entail 
finalising all the legal loopholes that exist with regard to 
the way the MA is currently constituted- a process already 
underway with DEA, as well as the finalisation of the internal 
merger process. 

Another critical partner in the management of the site is the 
local municipality of Mogale City. There has been collaboration 
with the municipality on various aspects of the management of 
the site, including collaboration on the arts and craft project, 
but closer working ties need to be strengthened going forward. 
The issue of Acid Mine Drainage (AMD) and monitoring of the 
quality of the ground and surface water is another high priority 
for the MA, as is the meticulous management of development 
pressure in and around the COH WHS. 

The opening of the first phase of the Mountain Bike Project will 
likely add to the already existing profile of the COH WHS as a 
cycling and non-motorised destination of choice in Gauteng.

The MA will also continue to support the cooperatives that 
have been established as part of the Craft Beneficiation 
Project and will continue to sponsor school visits to the 
Maropeng and Sterkfontein visitor centres. The fossil casting 
project has also been established at Sterkfontein employing 
local community members and it is envisaged that this will 
become a self-sustaining and developing project managed in 
collaboration with WITS. The COH WHS Trust will also receive 
attention and will continue to support community projects and 
further scientific research. 

Last, but not least, the substantial upgrades at Maropeng 
and Sterkfontein in terms of the exhibition and external 
environment will likely draw greater footfall not only to the 
visitor centres, but to the greater catchment area of the World 
Heritage site. 

4.1.6 Challenges and Opportunities

CHALLENGES AND OPPORTUNITIES
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The appointment of a private partner or a number of partners 
in the management of the Interpretation Centre Complex will 
improve the overall performance of these centres.  

The OUV of the site cannot be managed in isolation from the 
stakeholders and communities directly impacted on by the 
site. Continued and greater impetus will be given to forging 
even closer ties and building on the relationships already 
established with all stakeholders, and in particular with fossil 
site landowners and surrounding communities, working 
together with them in managing the site for the benefit of all. 

4.1.6 Challenges and Opportunities

CHALLENGES AND OPPORTUNITIES
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TOURISM AND INVESTMENT

The Research and Planning Programme is responsible for the 
monitoring and evaluation of the impacts of the development 
of the destination. 

Tourism and Investment Monitoring and Evaluation 
sub-programme conducts strategic research which seeks 
to inform marketing, investment and brand management 
strategy for the organisation and also to inform decisions for 
further tourism development in the area. The highlights of 
2012/13 financial year were the Research into the economic 
value of heritage, paleo-tourism and conservation goods and 
services as well as the update of Gross Domestic Product and 
job creation figures for the COH WHS. 
The diagram below illustrates the economic value chain:

Research into the economic value of heritage, 
palaeo-tourism and conservation goods and services was 
commissioned for two purposes:

• to evaluate use and non-use benefits of heritage and  
conservation, and
• to review the value of palaeo-tourism in South Africa,  
particularly in the COH WHS.

The diagram below illustrates the economic value of heritage, 
paleo-tourism and conservation goods and services chain:

TOURISM AND INVESTMENT

4.1.7
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4.1.7 Tourism and Investment
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The update of Gross Domestic Product 
contribution and job creation figure; the 
sub-programme further updated the 
economic impact model developed for 
COH WHS with the purpose of updating 
the contribution of the tourism industry 
to the local economy, specifically 
GDPR and job creation and to provide 
projections for 2012 to 2015. 

4.1.7 Tourism and Investment

Local craft store, COH WHS 

TOURISM AND INVESTMENT
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DEST INAT ION AWARENESS AND 
MARKET ING

4.1.8.1 Marketing for COH WHS 

Marketing for the Cradle of Humankind World Heritage (COH 
WHS) remains guided by the 5- year Destination Marketing 
Strategy developed by Grounded Media, formerly known as 
Kagiso Communications. 

Marketing of the West Rand’s attract brand has also though 
been strongly influenced by the merger process where the 
COH WHS and its sister tourism project Dinokeng are being 
merged with the Gauteng Tourism Authority (GTA) e.g. 
inclusion of both as part of the Gauteng Signature Collection 
(SC), which has received preferential marketing due to its (SC – 
an inventory of iconic, must-see and memorable experiences) 
significant role in driving increased visitor numbers especially 
on the leisure front into the province.

4.1.8.2  Brand Management

The appointment of Brand Leadership to assist in the Brand 
Management work for the COH WHS and Intellectual Property 
Management has seen delivery of an all-inclusive COH WHS 
Brand Valuation Study with the COH WHS holding a strong 
value of R95m, a Brand Audit flagging inconsistency in 
managing use of the brand, uncovering reasons for potential 
confusion with it’s Maropeng sub-brand and the need for 
increases stakeholder consultation around use, value and 
management of the brand.

4.1.8.3 Website Development

The website for the World Heritage Site was integrated in the 
Gauteng Tourism site the previous year and the pear against 
which we reporting saw management of brand messaging 

DESTINATION AWARENESS AND MARKETING

4.1.8
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4.1.8 Destination Awareness and Marketing

for the mini destination ensuring it’s not lost as it needs 
to retain its own market identity visually and intrinsically. 
This has been flagged as an area of correction for the new 
financial year.

4.1.8.4 Local Tourism Association

Grant Thornton was appointed to develop a Framework, 
Business Plan and Marketing Strategy for the COH WHS as 
informed by thorough stakeholder consultation, which we can 
confidently report took place as initially set out in the Terms 
of Reference for the project. This work has been delivered 
notwithstanding challenges in convincing stakeholders to 
partake in the process and rally behind the idea of a single 
and collective COH WHS Local Tourism Association. 

The project has progressed so well that it’s at a stage of 
appointing a private sector provider for running of the LTA, 
which will be functional and operational in this financial year.

DESTINATION AWARENESS AND MARKETING
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EXHIB IT IONS

4.1.9.1 Tourism Indaba 2013

The COH WHS exhibited at the annual 
Tourism Indaba under the Destination 
Gauteng provincial banner as one of 
it’s signature experiences piloted at 
last year’s Indaba. Meeting space, 
pre-scheduled meetings, trade 
engagements and advertising support 
formed part of the Cradle’s programme 
at Africa’s biggest tourism trade show.

EXHIBITIONS

4.1.9
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4.1.9 Exhibitions

 4.1.9.2 Soweto Wine Festival 

As was the case with all other trade and consumer shows, the 
COH WHS partook in one of province’s biggest wine shows 
under the Destination Gauteng mother brand. The Soweto 
Wine Festival once again grew in numbers attracting a record 
7000 revelers over the three day festival period. Awareness 
of the COH WHS mini destination has considerably grown 
amongst attendees, which could be indicative of the broader 
product awareness within the Emerged Black market. 

4.1.9.3 Getaway Consumer Show 

The Gauteng Getaway Show where the COH exhibited under 
the Gauteng stand once attracted hordes of visitors from 
the province. The Cradle remains a premier exhibitor at this 
leading consumer show where thousands of destination 
enquiries were dealt with over the three day show.

4.1.9.4 Meetings Africa

Africa’s premier Business Tourism Show saw the Cradle of 
Humankind exhibiting under the Gauteng Tourism pavilion 
which showcased leading tourism associations across the 
Gauteng region. As required for meetings, conferences and 
expos the COH WHS boasts being one of Gauteng’s leading 
MICE (Meetings, Incentives, Conferences and Events) 
destinations with numerous enquiries and subsequent 
bookings made for business tourism activity at the Visitor 
Centre, Maropeng and other flagship venues in the area as 
the Guvon Group, Avianto and others. 

4.1.9.5 World Travel Market

This platform internationally remains crucial as the United 
Kingdom continues to perform amongst our leading 
international source markets for tourism in the country and 
province.  Working alongside South African Tourism’s Country 
Managers and relevant marketing and communications 

EXHIBITIONS
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4.1.9 Exhibitions

personnel, the COH WHS was well profiled as Gauteng’s only 
World Heritage Site which boasts a global brand appeal thus 
a strong pull for visitors into the province. Working with SA 
Tourism remains a priority for increased tourism footfall 
growth.

4.1.9.6 International Tourism Bourse (ITB)

The project was profiled under the Gauteng Tourism 
destination in the Culture Lounge exhibition hall as well as 
one the SA Tourism Country Pavilion.  Both locations served 
very useful with the COH a UNESCO-listed World Heritage 
Site being a huge destination or attraction of interest under 
Cultural Tourism offering and working well alongside other 
provinces on the Country Pavilion allowed the province to 
manage concerns around crime and safety for example.
Similar to the UK, Germany which hosts the ITB, Berlin Show 
is one of the top three international source markets. 

   ...Germany which hosts the ITB, 
Berlin Show is one of the top three 
international source markets. 

EXHIBITIONS
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EVENTS

4.1.10.1 Heads of State Visits

This area of work remains a challenge being a high-profiled 
natured event or hosting involving foreign Presidents, 
Nobel Prize Winners and relevant government departments 
ensuring Protocols and security concerns are measured. The 
engagement of the Department of International Relations 
and Co-operation (DIRCO) was a huge area of focus and the 
need for a site orientation visit remains a critical task for 
finalization.

During the period under review the project proudly hosted one 
of South Africa’s iconic humanitarians in Emeritus Archbishop 
Desmond Tutu at the Cradle of Humankind Visitor Centre, 
Maropeng. The successful hosting of Tutu attracted hordes 
of media and subsequent coverage on the event, further 

highlighting the global significance of this World Heritage Site 
– once again placing Gauteng on the global map

4.1.10.2 Hands that Rock the Cradle

The Hands that Rock the Cradle project launched the previous 
year remains a project that works closely with the Marketing 
Unit as far as the supply of themed COH WHS artifacts for 
gifting during events and other stakeholder engagements, 
especially international. Gifts were sourced m the co-operative 
for the Tourism Indaba and other events hosted. 

EVENTS

4.1.10
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4.1.10 Events

4.1.10.3 COH WHS Cycling Festival

The Cradle Cycling Festival was once again hosted at Maropeng with participation 
numbers quite down on the Saturday due to heavy rains and very few cyclist showing 
up for the race due to the aforementioned weather challenges. The event did 
however pick up as far as numbers at the festival and riders are concerned on the 
Sunday with clear and warm weather. This event remains a signature event for the 
Cradle which continues to grow as one of South Africa’s premier competitive and 
leisure cycling destinations. 

Hands that Rocks the Cradle,
presentation night

    This event remains a signature event for the 
Cradle which continues to grow as one of South 
Africa’s premier competitive and leisure cycling 
destinations

EVENTS



38

FUNDRAIS ING

4.1.11.1 Fundraising Strategy
The fundraising strategy for the Cradle of Humankind Trust 
was finalised and approved during the year under review. Apart 
from the drafting of funding proposals, the implementation 
of all other facets of the strategy was put on hold pending 
the realignment of the Cradle of Humankind World Heritage 
Site Trust. Donor compliant proposals were drafted and 
submitted to prospective funders that included the Jobs Fund, 
Lotto, National Heritage Fund and the Department of Rural 
Development.  

Fundraising will continue to be active in the drafting of funding 
proposals and facilitating strategic partnerships with both 
the private sector and government departments. It is hoped 
that the realignment of the Trust is completed timeously to 
enable the Trust to be fully functional including a more holistic 
implementation of the fundraising strategy.

4.1.11.2 Cradle of Humankind Trust
The Cradle of Humankind Trust continued to be a going 
concern during the year under review even though some of 
its activities were put on hold pending a realignment exercise 
running concurrently with the Merger.  Focus during the year 
was on monitoring the three community benefits projects and 
two scientific research projects that were funded in 2012/13 
financial year.   Regarding compliance, financial audit and 
tax returns were done as scheduled and signed off by the 
Trustees. The Scientific Advisory Committee a total of three 
new projects for approval by the Board in relation to funding 
from the Trust. 

FUNDRAISING

4.1.11
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4.1.11 Fundraising

Outlook for 2014 - 2015

The COH WHS is fast being recognised as one of the premier 
tourism destinations in South Africa and a site that holds 
immense significance for the world, as it talks directly to 
the story of our ancient ancestors and remains one of the 
most prolific palaeoanthropological sites in the world. The 
phenomenal recent discoveries at the Malapa and Rising 
Star sites are set to change the face of palaeoanthropologi-
cal going forward with major announcements expected in the 
new year of the finds at the Rising Star site. 

There is a huge opportunity for the MA to develop the site 
in line with UNESCO prescriptions and open up the site for 
tourism development that not only profiled the site and its 
richness, but directly benefited communities living in and 
around the site, as well as the country and the continent as 
the birthplace of humanity. 

The main focus for the MA in the coming year is the protection 
and preservation of the elements which constitute the 
Outstanding Universal Value (OUV) of the site which is, first 
and foremost, the existing fossil sites and the biophysical 
environment in which the fossil sites exist. This is what 
constitutes the OUV of the site. This will entail finalising all 
the legal loopholes that exist with regard to the way the MA is 
currently constituted- a process already underway with DEA, 
as well as the finalisation of the internal merger process. 

Another critical partner in the management of the site 
is the local municipality of Mogale City. There has been 
collaboration with the municipality on various aspects of 
the management of the site, including collaboration on the 
arts and craft project, but closer working ties need to be 
strengthened going forward. 
The issue of Acid Mine Drainage (AMD) and monitoring of the 
quality of the ground and surface water is another high priority 
for the MA, as is the meticulous management of development 
pressure in and around the COH WHS. 

FUNDRAISING
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The opening of the first phase of the Mountain Bike Project 
added to the already existing profile of the COH WHS as a 
non-motorised and cycling destination of choice in Gauteng. 
The MA also continued to support the cooperatives that were 
established as part of the Craft Beneficiation Project and 
sponsored school visits to the Maropeng and Sterkfontein 
visitor centres. The fossil casting project was established at 
Sterkfontein employing local community members and it is 
envisaged would become a self-sustaining and developing 
project managed in collaboration with Wits. The COH WHS 
Trust also received attention and would continue supporting 
community projects and further scientific research. 

Lastly, the substantial upgrades at Maropeng and Sterkfontein 
in terms of the exhibition and external environment would 
likely draw greater footfall not only to the Visitor Centres, but 
to the greater catchment area of the World Heritage Site. The 
appointment of a private partner or a number of partners in 
the management of the Interpretation Centre Complex would 
also improve the overall performance of these centres.  

FUNDRAISING

The OUV of the site cannot be managed in isolation from the 
stakeholders and communities directly impacted on by the 
site. Continued and greater impetus would be given to forging 
even closer ties and building on the relationships already 
established with all stakeholders, and in particular with fossil 
site landowners and surrounding communities, in managing 
the site for the benefit of all. 

Outlook for 2014 - 2015
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Report of the auditor-general to the Gauteng Provincial Legislature on Cradle of Humandkind 
World Heritage Site trading entity

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Introduction
1. I have audited the financial statements of the Cradle of 
Humankind World Heritage Site Trading Entity set out on pages 
xx to xx, which comprise the statement of financial position as 
at 31 March 2014, the statement of comprehensive income, 
statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows 
for the year then ended, and the notes, comprising a summary 
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory 
information. 

Accounting Officer’s responsibility for the 
financial statements
2. The accounting officer is responsible for the preparation and 
fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance 
with the Generally Recognised Accounting Practice (GRAP) and 
the requirements of the Public Finance Management Act of South 
Africa, 1999 (Act No.1 of 1999) (PFMA), and for such internal 
control as the accounting officer determines is necessary to 
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor-General’s responsibility 
3. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial 
statements based on my audit. I conducted my audit in accordance 
with the Public Audit Act of South Africa, 2004 (Act No. 25 of 2004) 
(PAA), the general notice issued in terms thereof and International 
Standards on Auditing.  Those standards require that I comply with 
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are 
free from material misstatement.

4. An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence 
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. 
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, 
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement 
of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.  In 
making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal 
control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of 
the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal 
control.
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Report of the auditor-general to the Gauteng Provincial Legislature on Cradle of Humandkind 
World Heritage Site trading entity

An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of 
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the 
overall presentation of the financial statements. 

5. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient 
and appropriate to provide a basis for my audit opinion.

Opinion 
6. In my opinion, the financial statements fairly presents, in 
all material respects, the financial position of the Cradle of 
Humankind World Heritage Site Trading Entity as at 31 March 
2014, and its financial performance and cash flows for the year 
then ended in accordance with the basis of accounting described 
in note 1 of the accounting policies to the financial statements 
and the requirements of the PFMA.

Emphasis of matters
7. I draw attention to the matters below. My opinion is not 
modified in respect of these matters.

Restatement of corresponding figures
8. As disclosed in note 16 to the annual financial statements, 
the corresponding figures for the financial year ended 31 March 
2013 have been restated as a result of a change in accounting 
policy to align it to GRAP.

Going Concern
9. As stated in note 14 to the annual financial statements, 
the trading entity’s existence is affected by the realignment 
process at Gauteng Department of Economic Development. The 
realignment process will result in Cradle of Humankind World 
Heritage Site Trading Entity being incorporated into Gauteng 
Tourism Authority.

Additional matter
10. I draw attention to the matter below. My opinion is not 
modified in respect of this matter.

Unaudited supplementary schedules
11. The supplementary information set out on pages … to … do 
not form part of the financial statements and is presented as 
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additional information. I have not audited these schedules and, 
accordingly, I do not express an opinion thereon.

Report On Other Legal And Regulatory Requirements
12. In accordance with the PAA and the general notice issued 
in terms thereof, I report the following findings relevant to the 
reported performance information against predetermined 
objectives for selected programmes presented in the annual 
performance report, compliance with legislation as well as 
internal control. The objective of my tests was to identify 
reportable findings as described under each subheading but 
not to gather evidence to express assurance on these matters. 
Accordingly, I do not express an opinion or conclusion on these 
matters.

Predetermined objectives 
13. I performed procedures to obtain evidence about the 
usefulness and reliability of the reported performance 
information for the following selected programmes presented in 
the annual performance report of the trading entity for the year 
ended 31 March 2014.

• Integrated Environmental Conservation and Management               

pp. xx – xx
• Marketing and Public Relations      
pp. xx – xx
• Events        
pp. xx – xx
• Interpretation Centres Complex      
pp. xx – xx

14. I evaluated the reported performance information against 
the overall criteria of usefulness and reliability.
15. I evaluated the usefulness of the reported performance 
information to determine whether it was presented in accordance 
with the National Treasury’s annual reporting principles and 
whether the reported performance was consistent with the 
planned programmes. I further performed tests to determine 
whether indicators and targets were well defined, verifiable, 
specific, measurable, time bound and relevant, as required 
by the National Treasury’s Framework for managing 
programme performance information (FMPPI).

16. I assessed the reliability of the reported performance 
information to determine whether it was valid, accurate and 
complete.
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17. I did not raise any material findings on the usefulness and 
reliability of the reported performance information for the 
selected programmes.

Additional matter
18. Although I raised no material findings on the usefulness 
and reliability of the reported performance information for 
the selected programmes, I draw attention to the following 
matter. 

Achievement of planned targets
19. Refer to the annual performance report on pages xx to xx 
for information on the achievement of the planned targets for 
the year.  

Compliance with legislation 
20. I performed procedures to obtain evidence that the trading 
entity has complied with applicable legislation regarding 
financial matters, financial management and other related 
matters. 

21. I did not identify any instances of material non-compliance 
with specific matters in key legislation, as set out in the 

general notice issued in terms of the PAA. 
Internal control.

22. I considered internal control relevant to my audit of the 
financial statements, performance report and compliance 
with legislation.
 
23. I did not identify any significant deficiencies in internal 
control. 

Johannesburg
31 July 2014
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The head of the Trading Entity is the Chief Executive Officer 
appointed in terms of section 36(3)(b) of the Public Finance 
Management Act, Act 1 of 1999.

The Chief Executive Officer is responsible for the preparation, 
integrity and fair presentation of the financial statements 
and other financial information included in this report. In 
presenting the accompanying financial statements, South 
African Statements of General Accepted Accounting Practice 
have been followed; applicable accounting assumptions have 
been used while prudent judgement and estimates within the 
requirements of the Public Finance Management Act, 1999 
(Act No. 1 of 1999), as amended have been made.

The going concern basis has been adopted in preparing the 
financial statements. The Chief Executive Officer has no 
reason to believe that the trading entity will not be a going 
concern in the foreseeable future based on forecasts and 
available cash resources. The financial statements support 
the viability of the trading entity.

The financial statements are being audited by the Auditor 
General, which was given unrestricted access to all financial 
records and related data. 

The annual financial statements on pages to............. were 
approved by the Chief Executive Officer on ........................... 
and are signed on their behalf by:

________________________________
Dawn Robertson
Acting Chief Executive Officer

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Statement of Responsibility
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The Cradle of Humankind World Heritage Site Trading Entity 
is a Blue IQ project reporting to the MEC for Economic 
Development through the Chief Executive Officer for the 
Cradle of Humankind World Heritage Site and Dinokeng 
Programmes.

The Chief Executive Officer is supported by the Chief Financial 
Officer, Programme Manager and staff.

The Department of Economic Development and Gauteng 
Tourism Authority provides corporate services in the areas of 
Human Resource Management and information management 
in terms of a Service Level Agreement.  

The program operates in a complex multi-disciplinary 
environment in collaboration and partnership with various 
agencies and stakeholder trading entity.

Audit Committee

Audit committee meetings took place regularly during the 
course of the financial year.

Internal audit

Internal audit tasks were performed by the Gauteng Shared 
Service Centre based on the global risks identified by the 
Senior Management of the Cradle of Humankind World 
Heritage Site Project.

Risk management

The Senior Management of the Cradle of Humankind World 
Heritage Site Programme has identified its global risks and 
mapped the necessary control measures for these risks. 
Residual values have been computed for the identified 
risks on the basis of the probability of occurrence and the 
effectiveness of the control measures.  

Fraud prevention

Although fraud has not been identified by Senior Management 
as a global risk for Cradle of Humankind World Heritage Site 
due the strength of internal control processes, the Fraud 
Prevention Plan of the Department of Economic Development 
and Gauteng Tourism Authority applies to Cradle of 
Humankind World Heritage Site. 
 

Corporate Governance Report

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Report of the Audit Committee

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CRADLE OF HUMANKIND AND DINOKENG

We are pleased to present our report for the financial year 
ended 31 March 2014.

The Audit Committee consists of the external Members listed 
hereunder and is required to meet a minimum of at least 
two times per annum as per provisions of the Public Finance 
Management Act (PFMA). In terms of the approved Terms of 
Reference (GPG Audit Committee Charter), six meetings were 
held during the current year, i.e. four meetings for Quarterly 
Performance Reporting (financial and non-financial) and 
two meetings to review and discuss the Annual Financial 
Statements and the Auditor-General Report.

Name of Member Number of Meetings 
Attended

Vishnu Naicker (Chairperson) 05

Tshidi Molala (Member) 05

Wayne Poggenpoel (Member) 06

Executive Members:

In terms of the GPG Audit Committee Charter, officials 
listed hereunder are obliged to attend meetings of the Audit 
Committee:

Complusory Attendees Number of Meetings 
Attended

Dawn Robertson 
(Acting Chief Executive Officer)

06

Yaseen Asmal
(Chief Financial Officer)

06

Matome Shotholo
(Chief Risk Officer)

05
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The Audit Committee noted that the Chief Executive Officer 
attend all the six scheduled Audit Committee meetings.  
Therefore, the Audit Committee is satisfied that the Entity 
adhered to the provisions of the GPG Audit Committee Charter. 

The Members of the Audit Committee met with the Senior 
Management of the Entity and Internal Audit, collectively to 
address risks and challenges facing the Entity. A number 
of in-committee meetings were held to address control 
weaknesses and conflicts with the Entity.

Audit Committee Responsibility

The Audit Committee reports that it has complied with its re-
sponsibilities arising from section 38 (1) (a) of the PFMA and 
Treasury Regulation 3.1.13. The Audit Committee also reports 
that it has adopted appropriate formal terms of reference 
as its Audit Committee Charter, has regulated its affairs in 
compliance with this Charter and has discharged all its re-
sponsibilities as contained therein.

The effectiveness of internal control and Information 
and Communication Technology (ICT) Governance

The Audit Committee has observed that the overall control 
environment of the Entity has continued to improve during 
the year under review.  Limited deficiencies in the system of 
internal control and deviations were reported in the Internal 
Audit Reports.

In the conduct of its duties, the Committee has, inter alia, 
reviewed the following:
• The effectiveness of the internal control systems;
• The operational risk areas covered in the scope of internal 
and external audits;
• The adequacy, reliability and accuracy of financial information 
provided to Management and other users of such information;
• Any accounting and auditing concerns identified as a result 
of internal and external audits;
• Compliance with legal, accounting and regulatory 
frameworks;
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• The activities of the Internal Audit Function, including its 
annual work program, co-ordination with external auditors, 
the reports of significant investigations and the response of 
Management to specific recommendations; 
• Where relevant, the independence and objectivity of external 
auditors.

The system of internal control applied by the Entity over 
financial risk management is effective, efficient and 
transparent. In line with the PFMA and the King III Report on 
Corporate Governance requirements, Internal Audit provides 
the Committee and management with assurance that the 
internal controls are appropriate and effective.

This is achieved by means of the risk management process, as 
well as the identification of corrective actions and suggested 
enhancements to the controls and processes, reports of the 
Internal Auditors, the Audit report on the Annual Financial 
Statements and the management report of the Auditor-Gen-
eral.

Internal Audit 

\The Audit Committee is satisfied that Internal Audit plans 
addresses a clear alignment with the major risks, adequate 
information systems coverage, a good balance between 

different categories of audits, i.e. risk-based, mandatory, 
performance and follow-up audits.

The Audit Committee has noted considerable improvement in 
the communication between the Executive Management, the 
Auditor-General and the Internal Audit Function, which has 
strengthened the Corporate Governance initiatives.

The Audit Committee wishes to stress that in order for 
the Internal Audit Function to operate at optimal level as 
expected by the Audit Committee, it requires additional 
human resources and skills. 

Risk Management

Progress on Entity risk management was reported to the 
Audit Committee on a quarterly basis.  The Audit Committee 
is satisfied that the actual management of risk is receiving 
attention, although there are areas that still require 
improvement.  Management should take full responsibility 
for the entire Enterprise Risk Management Process and 
continue to support the Chief Risk Officer to even further 
enhance the performance of the Entity.
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Forensic Investigations

The Audit Committee held in-committee meetings with the 
Forensic function and no significant forensic investigations 
reported for the Entity during the financial year under review.

The quality of quarterly reports submitted in terms of 
the PFMA and the Division of Revenue Act 

The Audit Committee is satisfied with the content and quality 
of financial and non-financial quarterly reports prepared and 
issued by the Accounting Officer of the Entity during the year 
under review and that the reports were in compliance with the 
statutory reporting framework.

Evaluation of Financial Statements

The Audit Committee has:
• Reviewed and discussed the audited Annual Financial 
Statements  to be included in the Annual Report, with the Au-
ditor-General and the Accounting Officer;
• Reviewed the Auditor-General’s Management Report and 
Management’s response thereto; 
• Reviewed the Entity’s compliance with legal and regulatory 
provisions; and 
• Reviewed significant adjustments resulting from the audit. 

• Reviewed the Entity’s Report on Performance Information.

The Committee has once again taken note of the concerns of 
the Auditor-General and accepts that there is further room 
for improvement in the accounting function and elements of 
the internal control environment. As in previous years the 
Committee will ensure that the internal audit plan addresses 
these issues and will monitor the implementation of the rec-
ommendations of the Auditor-General’s Report.

The Audit Committee has once again noted the constraints to 
achieve certain targets as identified by management. These 
constraints continue to adversely impact upon the Entity 
achieving certain objectives. 

The monitoring of the Entity’s performance is a key function 
of Management, Executive Management and the Executive 
Authority. The Committee has no direct line responsibility 
for the Entity’s performance measurement. However, the 
Committee has ensured, principally through the internal audit 
function, that the systems of performance measurement and 
reporting, as well as the systems of internal control that 
underpin the performance management framework of the 
Entity, remain robust and are addressed routinely in the audit 
plans. 
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The Committee also obtained assurance from management 
and internal audit that the Entity’s performance management 
system adequately and effectively report appropriate and 
relevant information

One-on-One Meeting with the Accounting Officer

The Audit Committee has met with the Accounting Officer for 
the Entity to address unresolved issues.

One-on-One Meetings with the Executive Authority

The Audit Committee has met with the Executive Authority for 
the Entity to apprise the MEC on the performance of the Entity 
and highlighted matters that required the MEC’s intervention.

Auditor-General South Africa 

The Audit Committee has met with the Office of the Auditor-
General South Africa to ensure that there are no unresolved 
issues.

Conclusion

The Committee wishes to thank the Executive Authority, 
the Chief Executive Officer, Senior Management, Treasury, 
Internal Audit and the Secretariat for their inputs and 
commitment shown during the year. I would further like to 
thank all members of the Committee for their contribution 
and the professional way in which meetings were conducted.  

…………………………………………
Mr. Vishnu Naicker

Chairperson of the Audit Committee

Date:

Report of the Audit Committee



53

General Review of the Cradle of Humankind World Heritage Site Project

The year 2013/14 was without a doubt one of the most challenging years for the Cradle of Humankind World Heritage Site Project 
(COH WHS).  This followed the decision to physically merge the COH WHS and Dinokeng Projects with the GTA in December 
2011. As a result the key challenge faced during the year was to ensure that processes and systems were put in place towards 
developing an integrated tourism entity for the province while at the same time ensuring effective and timely implementation 
of the budgeted projects of the Cradle of Humankind World Heritage Site Project.  Initially this meant having separate multi-
functional and multi-organizational work-streams working towards specific objectives in terms of an integrated organization.  
This work also included the legal due-diligence on the options and challenges that would be faced in terms of the legal merger 
process in addition to developing an integrated organizational structure for the new entity. 

However most of these processes were soon put on hold, as it became very clear that a Business Case was required to ensure the 
appropriate approvals were received from the relevant authorities including the Executive Authority for Economic Development, 
Gauteng Treasury and National Treasury. An internal task team was set up to manage the process of developing the Business 
Case for the merger process and the final Business Case was forwarded for the Executive Authority’s approval towards the end 
of March 2014. Mergers are complex processes even in the most advanced and sophisticated organizations, given the dynamics 
of dealing and managing people from different organizational cultures who have different expectations of how the process 
should unfold. The current situation is no different from other such merger processes and the year under review has seen huge 
challenges in managing and motivating staff during this period of change and uncertainty. 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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However various processes and forums have been used to ensure that staff participation and communication were encouraged 
in terms of the unfolding merger process.  In retrospect some of these interactions and engagements could have been better 
handled and implemented.

The other key issue that the organization faced over the year was the fact that it had to continue implementing its mandate with 
a much reduced budget compared to previous financial years. Even more importantly, the integration of some functions like 
Administration and Marketing within the three existing entities meant that the existing budget had to be reprioritized towards 
key areas such as Destination Marketing and Infrastructure Development.  As a result, the organization did not have the luxury 
of implementing many other desirable projects which may have had greater impacts, despite having requested rollovers from 
the previous financial year. 

It is within this context that one must view the implementation of projects during the 2013/14financial year. In terms of 
non-financial performance, the COH WHS Project achievement marked a notable improvement at 84.2%; outstripping the 
previous year’s 71%. The unachieved targets are also at advanced levels of achievements.  Among the key achievements were 
the appointment of the service provider to undertake the upgrades of the Hominid House learner accommodation and the 
finalisation of the architectural designs for the upgrade of the hotel at Maropeng.

In addition,17 kilometers of the multi-year 30 kilometer  Mountain Bike Trail project in the Cradle of Humankind World Heritage 
Site area was completed. All of these are part of the infrastructural development projects designed to enhance and diversify visitor 
experience and increase footfall to the visitor centres of Sterkfontein and Maropeng as well as the broader tourism catchment 
area of the Cradle of Humankind World Heritage Site project area. This was complemented by additional directional signage that 
was procured by the unit and erected throughout the project area by the Gauteng Department of Roads and Transport.    

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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The Project continues to sustain direct employment 
opportunities with 25 people having been  employed as 
part of the ‘Working for  Fire’ project in the COH WHS area 
with a primary purpose to prevent fires that could threaten 
the environment and the fossil sites which constitute the 
Outstanding Universal Value (OUV) of the World Heritage Site. 

The Working for Fire team also removes invasive alien 
vegetation from around the fossil sites, amongst other tasks.  
In addition to these temporary jobs, 113 people were also 
employed at Maropeng and Sterkfontein during the period 
under review. In order for GPG to gain a better understanding 
on the options available to ensure the sustainable continuation 
of the PPP initiative, Grant Thornton Strategic Solutions were 
appointed in 2012 to evaluate the operations of the project and 
to identify solutions and options for the future management 
and development of the visitor facilities. 

They concluded their analysis report and submitted their 
findings in March 2013. Following a Cabinet decision to 
advertise for a new private partner in the PPP agreement, a 
task team, including Wits, Provincial and National Treasury 
representatives and the Management Authority finalised an 
Expression of Interest document in October 2013 which was 
approved by the Maropeng Board in January 2014. 

The process of advertising for a new shareholder is currently 
underway and it is expected that this process will be finalised 
in the first quarter of the new financial year.  

Provincial government has been continuing to fund the 
operational losses of Maropeng in the year under question 
although Maropeng has been breaking even and in some 
quarters of the financial year actually showing a profit albeit 
a minimal one. The project is currently being managed jointly 
by Wits and GPG. 

In terms of ensuring better and more sustainable  
environmental management practices, processes and 
systems in the Cradle of Humankind World Heritage Site 
area, two surface and groundwater monitoring studies were 
undertaken for the year and the reports produced provide 
more information on the status of the water quality in the area 
which are intended to guide any mitigation measures that may 
become necessary to counteract the effects of water pollution 
in the site. This includes the monitoring of the decanting of 
old and disused mines which are the source of Acid Mine 
Drainage (AMD). Fossil site inspections are conducted twice 
annually jointly in consultation with the South African Heritage 
Resources Agency (SAHRA). 

Report of the Accounting Officer
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This entails the inspection of the 14 fossil sites in the project 
area and the submission of reports with recommendations. 

As part of its broader outreach programme and goal to directly 
involve communities in the understanding and management 
of the Cradle of Humankind World Heritage Site, 10 under-
privileged schools from around the project area are sponsored 
annually for excursions to Sterkfontein and Maropeng. The 
visitor centres provide a valuable resource for teachers and 
learners alike and complement the curriculum as evolution 
is part of the National Curriculum. In addition to this, An Arts 
and Craft Community Beneficiation project was established in 
2013 involving local community members. 

The project involved training of 31 crafters in the development, 
production and marketing of craft with themes related to 
the project area. The second phase of the project entailed 
mentorship and training programmes for the established 
five primary and one secondary cooperative. The established 
cooperatives were assisted in setting up a stall at the 
Maropeng visitor centre. Further mentoring and training 
programmes are planned in the future for these cooperatives 

Report of the Accounting Officer

and partnerships for the extension of the project are being 
explored with a number of different stakeholders. 

In addition to the arts and craft initiative, a collaborative project 
with Wits University employing local community members as 
fossil casters was also established in the reporting period. 
This fossil casting facility is functional and operates from 
the Sterkfontein Caves site. This project has recruited local 
community members to be trained in fossil casting skills and 
has created a number of employment opportunities, as well 
as ensuring that scientifically important high quality casts are 
available to the scientific community as well as the general 
public.

The Cradle Trust, while remaining dormant due to no 
funds being generated from the PPP agreement in terms 
of the Concession Contract, continues to be managed at an 
administrative level. 
A colloquium involving our Wits partners and various other 
stakeholders was held in the reporting period to look at the 
future of the COH WHS within an inclusive economy approach. 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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It is pleasing to report that the year under review also saw the 
successful conclusion of a new Human Resource Strategy that 
covers all 3 entities despite the outstanding finalisation of the 
legal merger. In the same breath, a Strategic Plan integrating 
all 3 entities has also been developed for the 2014 – 2019 
Medium-Term Strategic Framework period. The successful 
review of the organisational Information & Communication 
Technology (ICT) Strategy that takes on board the operational 
needs of the COH WHS and Dinokeng – which were previously 
on the system of the Department of Economic Development – 
marked another critical milestone and the plans.

As indicated above, the overall performance percentage for 
the period under review was 84.2% and in terms of hard 
numbers, 16 out of 19 indicators were achieved. It must be 
noted however, that in reality only 18 of the 19 performance 
indicators have been assessed, with the target on an 
unqualified audit being the only one not reportable at this point. 
Consequently, only two targets can be confirmed as having 
not been achieved, namely, the 100% completed development 
of picnic sites as well as the 100% completion of an upgrade of 
the amphitheatre facilities to host outdoor events. 

Report of the Accounting Officer
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While the picnic sites target is anticipated to be completed 
during the first quarter of the new financial year – following 
the necessary interventions designed to unlock blockages – 
the target on the amphitheatre will not be achieved due to 
original costs having escalated beyond available resources. 
Internal engagements are, however, underway on remedial 
action in a bid to potentially salvage the situation given the 
critical importance of this infrastructure development project. 

General review of the state of financial affairs 

The key area that was impacted on by vacancies was 
the Orientation Centre Unit in the Cradle of Humankind 
Programme which currently does not have any staff due to 
resignations and movement of staff to other areas within 
the merging entity. The main deliverable of this unit is the 
management of the relationship with Gauteng Department of 
Roads and Transport particularly with regard to infrastructure, 
maintenance and signage in the project area.  
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As a result, this area of work has lagged in the reporting period despite attempts to manage the work within the Cradle 
Programme.  Although not impacting on the core areas of work, the vacancies in the Monitoring and Evaluation Unit has also 
resulted in under-spending in that unit as the Stakeholder Engagement and Cooperative Governance Framework was put on 
hold especially in the context of the unfolding merger process. 

Capacity constraints and challenges facing the department 

The merger process between the three entities has resulted in the fact that most of the vacant posts have not yet been filled 
due to a freeze on recruitment or the creation of new posts. This has seen the current Chief Executive Officer of the Gauteng 
Tourism Authority currently acting as the Chief Executive Officer for the Cradle of Humankind World Heritage Site Project also.  
With approvals from the Executive Authority, a single Chief Financial officer was also appointed towards July 2013 to manage 
the Finances of all three entities. The other key vacancies include the posts of Deputy Director for the Orientation Centers unit, 
Events unit and Monitoring and Evaluation unit which together with other vacant posts have resulted in a vacancy rate of 29%. 
As a result, possible officials from the other two entities being merged have been utilized to fill current vacancies. This applies 
especially to areas of similarity like the Finance, Administration, Research and Planning and the Marketing functions. Increased 
emphasis is being placed in 2013/14 financial year to create temporary arrangements with staff to assist with projects in areas 
where there is a dire need of capacity.

Brief commentary on the interim financial statement 

The total funds available for use in the 2013-2014 financial year amounted to R68, 872; this includes Approved voted funds of R53, 
790 and approved rollover of R15, 082.

The total funds received during the year, amounted R 53, 295 million. This included: 

Report of the Accounting Officer
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• Voted funds of R 53, 290 million   from the Gauteng Department Economic Development
• Interest Income R 5,000.

This resulted in a total expenditure at the end of the 2013-2014 of R 65,105 million, included in this amount is the expenditure of 
R15, 082 which relates to approved roll over from 2013-2014 financial year. 

As a result 121 % of the approved budget was spent during the 2013-2014. Roll over application to the amount of R3, 559 million 
will be made to finance the commitments.

Public Private Partnerships 

As reported in previous Annual Financial Statements and Reports, the Cradle of Humankind World Heritage Site Project initiated 
and managed the Public Private Partnership contract with Maropeng A’ Africa Leisure (Pty) for  the management and operation 
of the Maropeng and Sterkfontein Interpretation Centers. Early in 2010 the key shareholder Stefanutti Stocks Holdings Limited 
exited from the concession which necessitated the Gauteng Provincial Government through the Cradle of Humankind World 
Heritage Site Project to take over the management of the Maropeng Board together with our concessor partner Wits University. 

This also required the provision of funding to cover the operational losses experienced by Maropeng A’ Africa Leisure (Pty) 
Limited until a suitable process to manage the facilities or obtain a new shareholder/s to operate and manage the concession 
agreement was found.

However the continued negative global and domestic economic outlook has negatively impacted on the local appetite for such 
projects and as a result, a suitable shareholder has not been found to date. 
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This has resulted in a diagnostic study concluded by a service provider, which will be used to determine the future direction of 
the existing Public Private Partnership contract in the 2014/15 financial year. This has also meant that other planned Public 
Private Partnerships projects which were in the pipeline, like the Magaliesberg and Lansaria Orientation Centres project, has 
been put on hold at least until the economic and market outlooks improve significantly.

Discontinued activities/activities to be discontinued 
During the year three projects were put on hold. The first one dealt with the management of the concession contract with 
Maropeng A’ Africa Limited. As indicated above, the new processes in place meant that the Bilateral Meetings and Project 
Steering Committee Meetings could be dropped as they were duplicating efforts at the Maropeng Board Meeting level. The 
impact of this decision was minimal. 

Secondly the Cradle of Humankind Trust Project, which involved the setting up of a fully functional Board of Trustees with the 
ability to disburse funds to Community Projects and Scientific Projects was also put on hold, in terms of the implementation of 
the newly developed Fundraising Strategy. This was done primarily to align the operations of the Cradle of Humankind Trust 
with the recommendations arising out of the diagnostic study conducted for the management of the Maropeng and Sterkfontein 
Interpretation Centers. The impact here was that no funds were disbursed as part of the current year for Community Projects 
and Scientific Projects despite receiving applications for funding. 

New or proposed activities
The 2013/14 financial year will see the legal merger process between the three entities unfolding with the development and 
implementation of the Merger Integration Plan. 
The 2013/14 financial year will also see the development and implementation of joint budgets and plans for all three entities.  

However all these changes have been factored into the 2013/14 planning and budgeting processes, and will see more focus on 
provincial tourism infrastructure projects as well as marketing and promotional activities.

Report of the Accounting Officer
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Supply chain management 

• List of unsolicited bids
• SCM system is in place
• Challenges experienced
• Exemptions and deviations from National Treasury

Future Plans and Action of the Department
As indicated above, the 2013/14 financial year will see the legal 
merger process between the three entities unfolding with the 
development and implementation of the Merger Integration 
Plan However all these changes have been factored into the 
2013/14 planning and budgeting processes. It is therefore only 
to be expected that more changes are possible as part of the 
unfolding of the legal merger process.

Events after the reporting date
There were no new events of significance after the reporting 
date.

Acknowledgement
The continued perseverance and dedication of staff and 
key stakeholders both within and outside the public sector 
is acknowledged in the accomplishments of the Cradle of 
Humankind World Heritage Site Project over the last year. 
The organization will continue to provide and maintain a high 

level of service in coordination with these key internal and 
external stakeholders. More importantly, the Management 
Authority for the Cradle of Humankind World Heritage Site 
will continue to implement its country obligation mandate in 
terms of UNESCO requirements as well as the World Heritage 
Convention Act (WHCA).   

Conclusion
The Cradle of Humankind World Heritage Site Project is still on 
track in terms of delivering on the strategic goals highlighted 
in the Master Plan for the area, as highlighted by some of 
the key achievements mentioned here. However, better 
processes and ways of handling and negating the challenges 
encountered during the current year will be sought as part of 
the merger process between the three entities.

Approval and Sign off

Ms D Robertson
Acting Chief Executive Officer

Report of the Accounting Officer
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For the year ended 31 March 2014
  
           31 Mar 2014                  31 Mar 2013

                   Note       R’000  R’000

      Restated

Revenue             53 295  57 184

Revenue from Non-

Exchange Transactions  2      53 290   57 157

Other Income  3               5                 27

    

Total Expenditure  4       (65 209)  (71 733)

Administrative Expenses        (12 104)  (18 988)

Compensation of 

Employees            (12 964)  (13 722)

Other   Operating 

Expenses           (37 141)  (27 054)

Subsidies             (3 000)    (4 325)

*Project Expenses   -    (7 644)

Surplus/(Deficit) for the year           11 914)  (14 549)

*project expenses relates to amortisation of prepayments made to Department of Roads 
and Transport in prior year 

As at 31 March 2014
                 31 Mar 2014  31 Mar 

2013

            Note      R’000  R’000

ASSETS      Restated

Non-current assets               2 861  3 126

Property, plant and 

equipment -               5         2 630  2 797

Intangible Assets  -             5.2         231  329

    

Current assets     9 555  20 018

Trade and other receivables -              6        9 286   7 558

Cash and cash equivalents -              7           269                    12 460

    

TOTAL ASSETS   12 416                    23 144

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity and Reserves   5 154  18 168

Accumulated surplus   5 154  18 168

Current liabilities   7 262     4 976

Trade and other payables -              8 6 952     4 743

Provisions       310        233

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES                    12 416                      23 144

    

Statement of Comprehensive Income Statement of Financial Position
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Statement of Changes in Equity Statement of Cash flow      2014  2013 

    Note R’000   R’000 

   

Cash flow from operating activities   

Cash receipts                       37 880  57 034 

Transfers and subsidies                       37 880   57 034 

   

Cash payments                     (48 308)       (65 462)

Compensation of employees                   (12 902)   (13 722) 

Goods and services                    (36 507)  (51 740)

Interest and rent on land      

Net cash generated from operating activities       9             (11 529)    (8 428)

   

Purchase of assets                              (601)    (3 268) 

Intangible assets               (61) 

   

Net cash used in investing activities        (662)         (3 268) 

   

Net (decrease)/increase in cash, cash 

equivalents and bank overdrafts                       -(12 252)     (11 696)

Cash, cash equivalents and bank 

overdrafts at beginning of the year                          12 460     24 156 

Exchange gains/(losses) on cash &bank overdrafts     

Cash, cash equivalents and bank 

overdrafts at end of the year                             269    12 460 

for the year ended  31 March 2014as at 31 March 2014
Restated

  Accumulated Surplus /(deficit)  Total

   Note R’ 000  R’ 000

       16

Opening Balance as 

previously reported                  0 

Adjustments

Changes in accounting policy GRAP 23  32 716                     32 716

Opening Balance as previously 

reported  31 March 2012  32 716                     32 716

Surplus for the year as 

previously reported                     (14 548)                   (14 548)

Balance as at 31 March 2013 Restated 18 168  18 168

Deficit for the year   (11 914)  (11 914)

Other Movements   (1 100)  (1 100)

Balance as at 31 March 2014  5 154  5 154
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1. Presentation of Annual Financial Statements

Cradle of Humankind World Heritage Site (The Trading Entity) 
is a trading entity of the Gauteng Economic Development 
(DED) and was established with the approval of the Gauteng 
Provincial Treasury (GPT) and the Executive Committee of the 
Province.
The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation 
of these financial statements are set out below and have 
been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless 
otherwise stated.

1.1 Use of estimates and judgments 

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance 
with the Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting 
Practice (GRAP) and in accordance with the following policies, 
which have been applied consistently in all material aspects, 
unless otherwise indicated. However, where appropriate and 
meaningful, additional information has been disclosed to 
enhance the usefulness of the financial statements and to 

Accounting Policies

comply with the statutory requirements of the Public Finance 
Management Act, Act 1 of 1999 (as amended by Act 29 of 
1999), and the Treasury Regulations issued.

In prior years the Trading Entity has prepared its financial 
statements in compliance with South African Statements of 
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (SA GAAP)
 These annual financial statements have been prepared on 
an accrual basis of accounting and are in accordance with 
historical cost convention unless specified otherwise.

For the year ended 31 March 2014
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A summary of the significant accounting policies, which have been consistently applied, are disclosed below.
The following GRAP Standards have been applied in the annual financial statements:

Reference  Topic

GRAP 1   Presentation of Financial Statements (as revised in 2010)
GRAP 2   Cash Flow Statements (as revised in 2010)
GRAP 3   Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors (as revised in 2010)
GRAP 4   The effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates (as revised in 2010)
GRAP 5   Borrowing Costs
GRAP 6   Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements
GRAP 7   Investments in Associates
GRAP 8   Interests in Joint Ventures
GRAP 9   Revenue from Exchange Transactions (as revised in 2010)
GRAP 10  Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies (as revised in 2010)
GRAP 11  Construction Contracts (as revised in 2010)
GRAP 12  Inventories (as revised in 2010)
GRAP 13  Leases (as revised in 2010)
GRAP 14  Events after the Reporting Date (as revised in 2010)
GRAP 16  Investment Property (as revised in 2010)
GRAP 17  Property, Plant and Equipment (as revised in 2010)
GRAP 19  Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets (as revised in 2010)

Accounting Policies
For the year ended 31 March 2014
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GRAP 21  Impairment of Non-cash-generating Assets
GRAP 23  Revenue from Non-exchange Transactions (Taxes and Transfers)
GRAP 24  Presentation of Budget Information in Financial Statements
GRAP 25  Employee Benefits
GRAP 26  Impairment of Cash-generating Assets
GRAP 31  Intangible Assets
GRAP 100  Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations ( as revised in 2010)
GRAP 104  Financial Instruments 

Standards of GRAP approved, but for which the Minister of Finance has not yet determined an effective date:
These accounting standards have been considered (where applicable) in the formulation of the accounting policies:

Reference  Topic

GRAP 105    Transfers of Functions between Entities under Common Control
GRAP 106    Transfers of Functions between Entities Not Under Common Control
GRAP 107    Mergers 7) Standards of GRAP that an entity may use to disclose information in its financial statements 

Accounting Policies
For the year ended 31 March 2014
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Reference  Topic

GRAP 20    Related Party Disclosures 8) Approved Standards of GRAP that entities are not required to apply

Reference  Topic
GRAP 18  Segment Reporting

The reporting currency of the entity is Rands.

Changes in accounting policies and disclosure
The Trading Entity has prepared its financial statements in compliance with Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting 
Practice (GRAP) including any interpretations, guidelines and directives issued by the Accounting Standards Board (ASB), as 
from 1 April 2013. In the previous financial years the entity prepared the Financial Statements in compliance with SA GAAP.

Functional and presentation currency
All amounts have been presented in the currency of the South African Rand (ZAR), which is also the functional currency of the entity.

Rounding
Unless otherwise stated all financial data have been rounded to the nearest one thousand (R’000).

Accounting Policies
For the year ended 31 March 2014
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2.5 Significant judgments and sources of estimation 
uncertainty

In preparing the annual financial statements, management 
is required to make estimates and assumptions that affect 
the amounts represented in the annual financial statements 
and related disclosures. Use of available information and 
the application of judgment is inherent in the formation of 
estimates. Actual results in the future could differ from these 
estimates which may be material to the annual financial 
statements. Significant judgments include:

Foreign currency translation

Monetary assets and liabilities that are denominated in foreign 
currencies are translated at the closing rate at the reporting 
date. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the 
settlement of such transactions and from the translation at 
year-end exchange rates are recognised in the statement of 
financial performance.

Impairment of assets

The Trading Entity reviews the carrying amounts of its 
tangible and intangible assets at each reporting date to 
determine whether there is any indication that those assets 
are impaired. If an indication is identified, the Trading Entity 
estimates the recoverable amount or recoverable service 
amount of the asset in order to determine the amount of the 
impairment, if any.  The recoverable amount of an asset, or 
cash-generating unit, is the higher of its fair value less costs 
to sell and its value in use. 
 
1.2 Property, plant and equipment
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is 
recognised as an asset if it is probable that future economic 
benefits or service potential associated with the item will flow 
to the Trading Entity and the cost or fair value of the item 
can be measured reliably.  Property, plant and equipment 
are measured initially at cost. After initial recognition, 
property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost 
less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment 
losses. 

Accounting Policies
For the year ended 31 March 2014
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Repairs and maintenance are charged to the statement of 
financial performance during the financial period in which 
they are incurred. Depreciation is charged so as to write off 
the cost of assets to residual values over its expected useful 
lives using the straight-line basis. Estimated useful lives are 
as follows:

• Computer Equipment     3-4years 
• Office Equipment  5-10 years
• Office Furniture   5-10 years
• Leasehold Improvements 10 years

Residual values, remaining useful lives and depreciation 
methods are reviewed annually and adjustments are made 
if appropriate. An asset’s carrying amount is written down 
immediately to its recoverable amount or recoverable 
service amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than 
its estimated recoverable amount or recoverable service 
amount. The carrying amount of an item of property, plant 
and equipment is derecognized on disposal or when no future 
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. 

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing 
the proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised in 
the statement of financial performance. 

1.3 Intangible assets

An intangible asset is an identifiable non-monetary asset 
without physical substance. An asset is identifiable if it either:

(a) is separable, i.e. is capable of being separated or divided 
from the WHS and sold, transferred, licensed, rented or 
exchanged, either individually or together with a related 
contract, identifiable asset or liability, regardless of whether 
the WHS intends to do so; or

(b) arises from contractual or other legal rights, excluding 
those granted by statue, regardless    of whether those rights 
are transferable or separable from the WHS or from other 
rights and obligations.
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An intangible asset is recognised if 

(a) it is probable that future economic benefits or service potential that are attributable to the asset will flow to the WHS; and 

(b) the cost or fair value of the asset can be measured reliably. 

Intangible assets are measured initially at cost. 

After initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment 
losses. Costs associated with the acquisition of computer software are recognised as intangible assets. Computer software are 
amortised over their expected useful lives using the straight-line basis. 
Estimated useful life: 

• Computer Software – 1- 3 years

The remaining useful lives and amortisation method are reviewed annually and adjustments are made if appropriate. An intangible 
asset is derecognised on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Gains and losses 
on disposals are determined by comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised in the statement of 
financial performance.
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Leasehold improvements

Leasehold improvements expenditure is capitalised and depreciated over the lease period of the lease contract. 

1.4 Financial instruments

The Trading Entity classifies its financial instruments based on the purpose for which the financial instruments were acquired. 
Management determines the classification of its financial instruments at initial recognition. The Trading Entity recognises a 
financial instrument in its statement of financial position when it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. 
Financial instruments are measured initially at fair value, including transaction costs. Regular way purchases and sales of 
financial assets are accounted for at trade date. Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured at amortised 
cost, using the effective interest method, less accumulated impairment losses. 

A financial asset is derecognised only when: 

• other right to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; 
• other Trading Entity retains the right to receive cash flows from the asset, but has assumed an obligation to pay them in full 
without delay to a third party under a ‘pass through’ arrangement; or
•‘the Trading Entity has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset and either
(a) has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset or
(b) has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.
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A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. For financial 
instruments measured at amortised cost, a gain or loss is recognised in surplus or deficit when the financial instrument is 
derecognised, and through the amortisation process.

A financial asset and a financial liability are only offset and the net amount presented in the statement of financial position when 
the Trading Entity currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and intends either to settle on a net 
basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The statement of financial position includes financial assets 
classified as financial assets at amortised cost. 

Financial assets at amortised cost are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted 
in an active market. They are included in current assets, except for maturities greater than 12 months after the reporting date. 
These are classified as non-current assets.  The Trading Entity’s financial assets at amortised cost comprise ‘Receivables’ and 
‘Cash and cash equivalents’ in the statement of financial position. The statement of financial position includes financial liabilities 
classified as financial liabilities at amortised cost. 

Financial liabilities at amortised cost are non-derivative financial liabilities with fixed or determinable payments that are not 
quoted in an active market.

The Trading Entity’s financial liabilities at amortised cost comprise trade payables in the statement of financial position. 
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Receivables

Receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest 
method, less provision for impairment.

A provision for impairment of trade receivables is established when there is objective evidence that the Trading Entity will not 
be able to collect all amounts due according to the original terms of the receivables. Significant financial difficulties of the 
debtor, probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial reorganisation, and default or delinquency in payments is 
considered indicators that the trade receivable is impaired.  The amount of the provision is the difference between the asset’s 
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the original effective interest rate. The 
impairment is provided for by reducing the carrying amount of the asset directly and is recognised in the statement of financial 
performance.

Impairment losses are reversed when an increase in the financial asset’s recoverable amount can be related objectively to an 
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, subject to the restriction that the carrying amount of the financial asset 
at the date that the impairment is reversed shall not exceed what the carrying amount would have been had the impairment not 
been recognised. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are reversed directly and recognised in the statement 
of financial performance.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise bank balance and petty cash held. Cash and cash equivalents are recognised initially at fair 
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest earned on the bank balance 
does not accrue to the Trading Entity but to the Revenue Fund of the Gauteng Provincial Government.
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Trade payables

Trade payables comprise accruals for services that have been acquired in the ordinary course of business.  Trade payables are 
initially recognised at fair value and subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.

1.5 Compensation of employees

The accounting policy in terms of the compensation of employees is in line with the policy of the Gauteng Provincial Treasury, 
and is as follows:

Short-term employee benefits

The costs of short-term employee benefits are expensed in the statement of financial performance in the year in which it occurs. 
Short-term employee benefits that give rise to a present or constructive obligation are recognised and disclosed in the notes to 
the financial statements. 

Salaries and wages shown in the statement of financial performance comprise payments to employees (including leave 
entitlements, thirteenth cheque and performance bonuses).

Post retirement benefits

Employer contributions are expensed in the statement of financial performance. No provision is made for retirement benefits in 
the financial statements of the Trading Entity, or in the financial statements of the parent department. 
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Any potential liabilities are disclosed in the financial statements of the National Revenue Funds and not in the financial 
statements of the employer department. This policy is in line with the Gauteng Provincial Treasury’s policy.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits such severance packages are recognised as an expense in the statement of financial performance.

Other long-term employee benefits

Other long-term employee benefits (such as capped leave) are recognised as expenditure in the statement of financial 
performance.

Key management personnel

Compensation paid to key management personnel is included in the disclosure for related parties.

1.6  Revenue from exchange transactions

An exchange transaction is one in which the Trading Entity  receives assets or services, or has liabilities extinguished, and 
directly gives approximately equal value (primarily in the form of goods, services or use of assets) to the other party in exchange. 
The Trading Entity recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured and it is probable that future 
economic benefits or service potential will flow to the entity.
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Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using the effective interest method. When a receivable is impaired, the 
Trading Entity reduces the carrying amount to its recoverable amount, being the estimated future cash flow discounted at the 
original effective interest rate of the instrument, and continues unwinding the discount as interest income. Interest income on 
impaired loans is recognised using the original effective interest rate.

1.7  Transfer payments (revenue from non-exchange transactions)

Non-exchange transactions are transactions that are not exchange transactions. In a non-exchange transaction, the Trading 
Entity  either receives value from another party without directly giving approximately equal value in exchange, or gives value 
to another party without directly receiving approximately equal value in exchange. As the Trading Entity satisfies a present 
obligation recognised as a liability in respect of an inflow of resources from a non-exchange transaction recognised as an asset, 
it reduces the carrying amount of the liability recognised and recognises an amount of revenue equal to that reduction.
Revenue received from transfer payments and donations are recognised as revenue to the extent that the Trading Entity has 
complied with any of the criteria, conditions or obligations embodied in the agreement. To the extent that the criteria, conditions 
or obligations have not been met, a liability is recognised.

Revenue from non-exchange transactions comprises the fair value of a transfer payment received or receivable from the Gauteng 
Economic Development. Transfer payments are recognised as revenue, except to the extent that a liability is also recognised 
in respect of the same inflow, when the right to receive such grants is established and there is reasonable assurance that the 
Trading Entity will comply with the stipulations attached to it The Trading Entity received a transfer payment from Gauteng 
Economic Development to fund its operating expenditure which is recognised in full as revenue.
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1.8  Leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as operating 
leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives received from the lessor) are charged to the statement of 
financial performance on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease. The lease for the building is classified as an operating 
lease and payments made under the operating lease are charged to the statement of financial performance on a straight-line 
basis over the period of the lease. The difference between actual lease payments and the amount recognised is shown as part of 
current liabilities. The lease commitment for future years is disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

1.9  Commitments

Contracted commitments (except for the lease of the building) to be paid after 1 April 2012 are not recognised in the statement 
of financial position as a liability or as expenditure in the statement of financial performance, but are included in the disclosure 
notes. These commitments are linked to specific service delivery contracts and are payable in future years.

1.10  Unauthorised expenditure

When confirmed unauthorised expenditure is recognised as an asset in the statement of financial position, until such time as the 
expenditure is either approved by the relevant authority, recovered from the responsible person or written off as irrecoverable. 
Unauthorised expenditure approved with funding is derecognised from the statement of financial position when the unauthorised 
expenditure is approved and the related funds are received.  Where the amount is approved without funding it is recognised as 
expenditure in the statement of financial performance on the date of approval.
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1.11 Fruitless and wasteful expenditure

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure is recognised as expenditure 
in the statement of financial performance according to the 
nature of the payment and not as a separate line item on the face 
of the statement of comprehensive income. If the expenditure is 
recoverable it is treated as an asset until it is recovered from the 
responsible person or written off as irrecoverable.

1.12 Irregular expenditure

Irregular expenditure is recognised as expenditure in the 
statement of financial performance. If the relevant authority 
does not condone the expenditure it is treated as an asset 
until it is recovered or written off as irrecoverable.

1.13 Related parties

The entity operates in an economic sector currently dominated 
by entities directly or indirectly controlled by the South African 
Government. 
As a consequence of the constitutional independence of the 

three spheres of government in South Africa,  only entities 
within the provincial sphere of government are considered to 
be related parties.

Management are those persons responsible for planning, 
directing and controlling the activities of the entity, including 
those charged with the governance of the entity in accordance 
with legislation, in instances where they are required to 
perform such functions.

Close members of the family of a person are considered to 
be those family members who may be expected to influence, 
or be influenced by, that management in their dealings with 
the entity.

Only transactions with related parties not at arm’s length or 
not in the ordinary course of business are disclosed.
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        31 Mar 2014  31 Mar 2013
        R’000   R’000
    

2. Revenue   
 
 Revenue from Non Exchange Transactions   53 290   57 157
    
 Total       53 290   57 157
    
    
3. Other income
Other income consist of the following:
   
 Interest income (Staff debtors)    5   27
    
 Total       53 295   57 184
    

Notes to the Annual Financial Statement
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Notes to the Annual Financial Statement
For the year ended 31 March 2014

4. Surplus /(deficit) for the year includes the expenditure:   
  Infrastructure project cost realised 
  from prepayment asset                 7 644
  Marketing cost        6 200     9 411
  Technical and consulting services    36 871   30 374
  Auditors remuneration          450        406
  Depreciation           926        593
   Computer Equipment                     446        233
   Office Furniture          320        227
   Amortisation- Software         160        133
    
  Employee cost      12 964   13 722
   Short term employee benefits   11 526   12 142
   Pension and medical costs     1 438     1 580
  Other operating expenditure       4 631     6 463
   Rental         2 058      2 203
   Security Services           144        170
   Cleaning Services          143        169
   Electricity           822        578
 
  Total Expenditure     65 209   71 733
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3.  Financial risk management

Financial risk factors

The Trading Entities’ activities expose it to some financial risks, most of which are managed through procurement and payments 
being done through the Shared Services Division within the Gauteng Department of Finance. The Trading Entity did not have 
direct access to its bank account, and thus cash management was not performed at Trading Entity but at GPT. The most 
significant financial risks are related to reporting (inaccurate financial information that might result in inaccurate reporting and 
not meeting reporting deadlines in terms of PFMA) and financial systems (payment systems not aligned to business processes)

Fair value interest rate risk

Financial asset mentioned in note 13 and 14.

Trade and other receivables pledged as security

The Trading Entity does not hold any collateral as security. 

Trade and other receivables past due but not impaired

The ageing of amounts past due but not impaired is as follows: The deposit and capitalised interest is not yet payable.
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4. Total Expenditure
   
  Staff Costs                    12 964       13  722
  Audit fees           450             469
  Advert Marketing           6 200     9 775 
  Bursaries             86          88
  Training and Development         364        181
  Consultation Services       36 871   37 861
  Travelling and Subsistence      1 344     2 806
  Communications          258          76
  Operating Leases        3 436      3 534
  Security Services           -        170
  Cleaning Services           -        169
  Electricity            -        415
  Venues  and Catering           240     1 063
  Admin Costs           180        392
   Transport Costs           216        142
  Other Operating Expenditure                                                      1 669        271
        
        51 314   57 412
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5. Property plant and Equipment

2014 2013

Cost Accumulated 
Depreciation

Carrying 
Value

Cost Accumulated 
Depreciation

Carrying 
Value

Computer  Equipment

Office Equipment

Leasehold Improvements

 1 727  (891)     836  1134  (450)  684

    751  (449)     302    751  (354)  397

 1 865  (373)  1 492  1 865  (149)             1 716

 4 343            (1 713)  2 630  3 750  (953)            2 797
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Reconciliation of Property, Plant and Equipment-2014

Opening 
Balance

Additions Disposals Depreciation Total

Computer  Equipment

Office Equipment

Leasehold Improvements

 684  601   (3)              (446)              836 

397                    (96)              302

1 716                      (224)              1 492 

2 797      601      (3)   (766)              2 630

Opening 
Balance

Additions Disposals Depreciation Total

Computer  Equipment

Office Equipment

Leasehold Improvements

 396  529   (8)              (233)              684 

  58   416                 (76)              398

   1 865                   (149)              1 716 

2 797   2 810      (8)   (693)              2 797

Reconciliation of Property, Plant and Equipment-2013
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5.2 Intangible Assets

2014 2013

Cost Accumulated 
Depreciation

Carrying 
Value

Cost R ‘000
Accumulated 
Depreciation

Carrying 
Value

Software Licences  526             (295)              231              464           -135             329

 526             (295)              231              464           -135             329

Notes to the Annual Financial Statement
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Reconciliation of Property, Plant and Equipment-2014

Opening 
Balance

Additions Disposals Depreciation Total

Total

Software Licences  329   62        -               (160)              231

 329   62        -               (160)              231

Reconciliation of Property, Plant and Equipment-2013

Opening 
Balance

Additions Disposals Depreciation

Software Licences      4   458        -              (133)              331 

     4   458        -              (133)              331 
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Notes to the Annual Financial Statement
For the year ended 31 March 2014

                R’000           R’000

6. Financial Assets                      
                   2014             2013

Trade and Other  Receivables                      -           -
Current Receivables                 9 286               7 558 
Cash and Cash Equivalents        269                      12 460
       
        9 555               20 018

7.  Cash and Cash Equivalents     R’000                      R’000
        
        2014     2013
   
Bank           266               12 457
Petty Cash              3          3

Cash and Cash Equivalents        269               12 460
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8. Financial Liabilities
   
Trade and Other Payables      6 952   4 743
Provision                         310                        233
   
                     7 262                  4 976
   
   
Current Receivables                   R’000                   R’000
         2014                   2013                  

Inter - Entity Dinokeng Trading Entity          88   7 124
Pre-Payments: Subscriptions         -      414
Staff Debtors             23        20
Salary Recoverable and Other         -       -
Inter Entity: Gauteng Economic Development     9 175       -
   
          9 286   7 558
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Notes to the Annual Financial Statement
For the year ended 31 March 2014

8.  Trade and Other Payables   
         R’000   R’000
          2014   2013
Leave Pay Accrual          137     192
Trade Accruals        6 445   4 534
Performance Bonus Provision         310       233
Other              60        17

          6 952   4 976
   

8.1. Reconciliation of Provisions   
        R’000   R’000
         2014    2013
Opening balance            233      205
Utilised provisions during the year          233     (197)
Unutilized provisions during the year             0         (8)
Provisions made during the year          310       233
   
             310       233
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9.  Cash Generated from Operations     
                    R’000                 R’000
                         2013                   2012
Surplus for the year                  (11 914)                     (14 548) 
Adjusted for:           385             6 120
Depreciation and amortisation                         926                  593 
Loss on write-off of fixed assets             5                          8 
Loss/Gain on transfer of fixed assets            -                       - 

Increase/Decrease  in payables                  2 207      (782)
Interest received              -                      - 
Increase/ Decrease in Receivables              (2 829)      6 273 
increase in provision relating to employee costs          76        28 
     
Cash flow from operations before working capital  changes         (11 529)                          (8 428)
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10.  Commitments

Commitments in respect of capital and research cost not accrued at the reporting date:
   
        28 Feb 2014  31 Mar 2013
            R’000        R’000
   
Contracted for           3 559       20 091
Not contracted for   

Total            3 559       20 091

This expenditure will be funded from approved voted funds. 

Within one year          3 559      15 082
Thereafter               5 010

Total           3 559      20 091

Notes to the Annual Financial Statement
For the year ended 31 March 2014



92

11. Public Private Partnership

11.1 Description of the arrangement

The Department and the University of Witwatersrand entered into an agreement in which they have agreed to cooperate in the 
establishment of an Interpretation Centre Complex (“ICC”) for a Concession Area, comprising an Orientation Centre at a site 
owned by Wits, the Sterkfontein Site, and an Interpretation Centre at a site owned by the Gauteng Provincial Government, the 
Mohale’s Gate Site.  The ICC is being established through a Public Private Partnership (PPP), the concessionaire being Maropeng 
a’Afrika Leisure (Pty) Ltd (formerly FSG Special Purpose Trading entity (Pty) Limited), a private trading entity with limited liability 
duly incorporated and registered under the laws of the Republic of South Africa, Registration Number 2002/032101/07.

Blue IQ Investment Holdings (Proprietary) Limited (“Blue IQ”) is the statutory trading entity wholly owned by the Gauteng 
Provincial Government which subscribes for shares in the Concessionaire with an aggregate subscription price of R163 000 
000.00 (one hundred and sixty three million Rand) plus interest plus bulk sewage costs of R1 784 477.00 (one million seven 
hundred and eighty-four thousand four hundred and seventy seven Rand). 

The Concessionaire is required to apply the subscription price of the shares subscribed for by Blue IQ to design, construct, 
install exhibits at, operate and maintain the ICC, and has the right to raise revenue by, inter alia, charging and collecting revenue 
from visitors to the ICC or from commercial funders and sponsors who agree to fund particular projects at the ICC.  
The terms on which the ICC will be designed and constructed, exhibits installed, and the ICC operated is set out in a Contract 
concluded on 19 October 2003.
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11.  Public Private Partnership (Continued)

11.2 Significant terms of the arrangement that may affect the amount, timing and certainty of future cash flows

Substantial risk has been transferred to the Concessionaire in this transaction and the terms of the arrangement preclude 
any affect on the amount, timing and certainty of future cash flows.  The Concessionaire has lodged a Construction and an 
Operations and Maintenance Bond in terms of the Contract. 
 
11.3  The nature and extent of:

a) Rights to use specified assets

The concession rights conferred and obligations imposed on the Concessionaire include the right to design, construct, 
commission, install exhibits at, Operate and Maintain the ICC and generally to derive revenues from the operation of the ICC, 
inter alia, by charging and collecting revenues from visitors to the ICC and from any third parties who may, from time to time, be 
granted rights to operate businesses within the Concession Area.  In return for the rights the Concessionaire is required to pay 
a Concession fee to the Concessor. This concession fee is paid into the Cradle of Humankind trust account.
The initial Concession Period shall be the period beginning on the Effective Date and expiring at midnight of the day preceding 
the tenth anniversary of the date on which the Construction Works have been certified as complete pursuant.
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b) Obligations to provide or rights to expect provisions of services; to       acquire or build items of property, plant and equipment; 
to deliver or rights to receive specified assets at the end of the concession period

The Concessionaire is required to ensure the timely and proper completion of the Design, Construction Works, Exhibition 
Installation and Operation and Maintenance of the ICC, and such future design and construction as may be necessary to meet 
the Concessionaire’s obligations in terms of the Concession Contract.

c) Renewal and termination options

The Concession Period is automatically extended for periods not exceeding five years provided that conditions stipulated in the 
Contract are met.  If the Concession Period is not extended all movable Project Assets forming part of the Concession Area 
shall vest in the Concessionaire until termination of this Concession Contract.  Upon termination of the Concession Contract, 
ownership of the movable Project Assets at each of the Mohale’s Gate Site and the Sterkfontein Site shall vest in the owner 
of that Site (or any other person or entity agreed on by the Concessor and Wits at that time) and shall be transferred by the 
Concessionaire to such new owners.    

Other rights and obligation (e.g. major overhauls), 
The Concession Contract specifies requirements for reinvestment during the Concession Period.
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12. Financial Instruments

At 31 December 2013, the carrying values of cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables and approximate the fair 
values due to short term maturities of these assets and liabilities and the accounting policies for financial instruments have 
been applied to the line items below:

2014              Loans and receivables   Fair Value
              R’000    R’000
31 March 2014
     
Assets as per reporting date      2 861     2 861
Account receivable       9 286     9 286 
Cash and cash equivalents         269        269 

Total        12 416    12 416 
      
Liabilities as per reporting date      
Provision           310       310 
Trade and other payables       6 952    6 952 

Total         7 262    7 262 
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2014              Loans and receivables   Fair Value
              R’000    R’000
31 March 2013     
Assets as per reporting date       3 128      2 861
Account receivable        7 558      7 558 
Cash and cash equivalents     12 460    12 460 

Total        23 146    12 416 
      
Liabilities as per reporting date      
Provision           233       233 
Trade and other payables       4 745    4 745 

Total         4 978    4 978 
      
12.1 Risk management of financial instruments

The Chief executive officer has approved and monitored the risk management processes, including cash flow management and 
reporting structures in relation to the management of financial instruments risk.
These risks, and the way they are managed, are detailed below.
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Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the entity will be unable to meet its obligations associated with financial liabilities. Liquidity risk 
management within the entity focuses on working capital management, cash balances and cash flow planning, coupled with 
liquidity support arrangements with the Department of Economic Development. 

Credit risk

The entity’s financial assets are trade and other receivables and cash and cash equivalents. Credit risk refers to the risk that 
counterparty will default on its obligations in respect of these instruments. The entity is not exposed to this risk as it does not 
charge a fee for the service that it provided. The balance of receivable relates to inter trading entity balance between the entity 
and Cradle of Human Kind World Heritage Site. Both these entities are managed by the same management.

Market risk

This is the risk that financial instruments fair values will fluctuate owing to changes in market prices. The entity is not exposed 
to this risk as it does not have any financial instruments of which its value might be influenced by changes in market prices. The 
entity financial instruments are only receivables and payables between the entity and its related parties.

Interest rate risk

This is a risk of loss due to a change in interest rates. The trading entity has no significant interest-bearing assets and long-term 
borrowings. There are no borrowings at variable rates of interest there the entity is not exposed to interest rate risk. 
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The trading entity analyses its interest rate exposure on a dynamic basis.
 
13. Contingent Liabilities

The entity is liable for a contingent liability resulting from certain employees that have capped leave. These employees are 
entitled to a maximum of five days of leave in each year from their capped leave. The amount is paid on the occurrence of future 
events that are not merely controlled by the entity. It is paid upon death, retirement and when an employee resigns the entity is 
not liable for payment.

        31 Mar 2014  31 Mar 2013
            R’000         R’000

Capped leave             219            211

Total              219            211

14. Going Concern
The financial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting policies applicable to a going concern. The entity will 
continue to operate as a going concern for at least the next 12 months. This basis presumes that funds will be available to finance 
future operations and that the realisation of assets and settlement of liabilities, contingent obligations and commitments will 
occur in the ordinary course of business. 
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15. Related Parties

Dinokeng and Cradle Humankind World Heritage Site are sister trading entities administered under Department of Economic 
Development to create a viable and attractive Geo-spatial tourism destination in an area that will result in economic growth.

                                                                                                        R’000                         R’000
                                                                                                          2014                            2013

Dinokeng                                                                                         15 700                       13 775

The main shareholder in terms of the PPP arrangement with Cradle of Humankind World Heritage Site has withdrawn its 
support to fund the operations of Maropeng and as a result Maropeng was recapitalised by Cradle Humankind World Heritage. 
Over and above this Cradle utilises the conference facilities of Maropeng at a discount of 10%.

                                                                                                        R’000                         R’000
                                                                                                          2014                           2013
 
Maropeng ‘a Afrika Leisure Pty Ltd                                                 15 500                        3 954

GGDED is Cradle of Humankind World Heritage Site’s Mother Department. The above transactions relate to Voted funds allocated 
to the entity to implement the strategic objectives.
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                                                                                                         R’000                         R’000
                                                                                                           2014                            2013

Department of Economic Development                                             53 290                        57 157

Cradle of Humankind World Heritage Site and GTA are fellow entities administered under Department of Economic Development. 
COH WHS performs collaborative marketing activities with GTA as per the direction of the MEC. GTA also provides corporate 
services to COH WHS
        R’000                         R’000
                                                                                                               2014                           2013

Gauteng Tourism Authority (GTA)                                                          5 487                          3 954
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Key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the 
activities of the entity, directly or indirectly, including all directors, Chief Executive officers and other senior management.

 

Chief Executive Officer      
       Robertson D                     464          -       -         -    464
Other senior management
       Asmal Y       376          -       -         -    376
      Tlebere K        458            55            9          82                 -  604
      Sathekge M       325            42                     -                      175                 -    54
      Chettiar S                          253            33            8                      128                      24  445
      Pillay M        273            32            3                      518                      24  439
      Layton N        273            32            3                      110                      24  438
      Amod A        300            36          16          43           -  395
      
      Grand total     2 615           231          39                      647                      72             3 703

For the Year ended
31 March 2014 Basic 

Salary
R’ 000

Employer 
contribution:
Pension
R’ 000

Employer 
contribution:
Medical
R’ 000

Allowances
R’ 000

Bonus 
Payments
R’ 000

Total
R’ 000
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For the Year ended
31 March 2014 Basic 

Salary
R’ 000

Employer 
contribution:
Pension
R’ 000

Employer 
contribution:
Medical
R’ 000

Allowances
R’ 000

Bonus 
Payments
R’ 000

Total
R’ 000

Chief Executive Officer      
       Robertson D      431             -                   -                   -           -  431

Other senior management
        Asmal Y      204              -           -           -      -  204
        Tlebere K 
        Sathekge M
        Chettiar S
        Pillay M       259                          34              3            148        29   473 
        Layton N       259                34              3            135        29      460
        Amod A       172                      22            12              46       -   252

        Grand total        2 293             216             35            782        88                  3 414 

The remuneration costs in respect of senior management are equally split between the Dinokeng Trading Entity and Cradle of 
Humankind World Heritage Site Trading Entity as they service both entities in meeting their strategic and operational objectives.
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16. Change in accounting policies

Deferred revenue

During the financial year the entity changed its accounting policy, in relation to the recognition and measurement of government 
grants, to align the practices with GRAP 23 (Revenue from Non-exchange transaction) in accordance with the guidance issued 
in Directive 5.

This change in the accounting policy specifically impacts on the timing when government grants are recognised (or released) 
as income in the statement of financial performance.  Specifically it is noted that the release of government grants related to 
assets, to income, is no longer linked to the useful life of the underlying assets but rather to the conditions of the grant.  As a 
result government grants are recognised in income earlier than they would have been under IAS 20.  Furthermore there is no 
longer a matching between the recognition of the grant income and the depreciation on the underlying assets.  

Therefore the operating expenditure recognised in subsequent periods may exceed the operating income in subsequent periods 
as there may not be a related government grant income to set off the effect of the expense on the surplus (deficit) for the period.
The retrospective application of the change in the accounting policy has had the following impact on the statement of financial 
position and statement of financial performance as presented:
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Effect on 31 March 2013 Restated               Restated

                          31 Mar 2014           31 Mar 2013
                                      R’ 000                 R’ 000
Statement of Financial Position   
Decrease in Deferred revenue                                          32 716
Increase in Accumulated Surplus                                         (32 716)
       
       0                           0    
      
Statement of financial performance

Increase in Revenue from non-exchange transactions    (14 548)
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Executive Summary on non-financial performance
For the 2013 / 14 Financil Year

Cradle of Humankind World Heritage Site (COHWHS)  

Cradle of Humankind World Heritage Site Project 
achievement marked a notable improvement at 89.5%; 
outstripping the previous year’s 71%. The unachieved targets 
are also at advanced levels of achievements.  Among the key 
achievements were the appointment of the service provider 
to undertake the upgrades of the Hominid House and the 
finalisation of the architectural designs for the upgrade of the 
hotel. In addition17 kilometres of the 30 kilometre  Mountain 
Bike Trail in the Cradle of Humankind World Heritage Site 
area were completed. All of these are part of the infrastruc-
tural development projects designed to enhance and diversify 
visitor experience 

The Project continues to sustain direct employment 
opportunities with 26 people having been employed as part 
of the ‘Working on Fire’ project in the Cradle of Humankind 
World Heritage Site area with a primary purpose to prevent 
fires that could threaten the environment. In addition to these 
temporary jobs, 113 people were also employed in Maropeng 
and Sterkfontein during the period under review. 

In terms of ensuring better and more sustainable 
environmental management processes and systems in the 
Cradle of Humankind World Heritage Site area, 2 surface 
and groundwater monitoring studies were undertaken for 
the year  and the reports produced provide more information 
on the status of the water quality in the area and areas in 
which action should be focused in the future. In addition, 
toward the protection and conservation of the fossil sites, two  
fossil site inspections were  finalized; with the submission of 
the final fossil inspection report covering at total of 14 sites 
in the Cradle of Humankind area. An update of the study 
was conducted in terms of the Economic Value of Heritage 
Tourism and Conservation for the Cradle of Humankind World 
Heritage Site and the final report was developed to guide 
future actions in this area of work. 

The main highlights of this study reveal that 1,552,880 day and 
overnight domestic and international visitors against a target 
of 1,517,390 visited the area, spending an average of 2 days 
as per planned target; which resulted in the generation of an 
estimated revenue of R859 100 000, against a target of R834 
900 000. 
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Executive Summary on non-financial performance
For the 2013 / 14 Financil Year

10 underprivileged schools from around the Cradle of 
Humankind World Heritage Site environs were sponsored as 
planned to visit Maropeng and Sterkfontein attractions. It is 
pleasing to also report that the year under review also saw 
the successful conclusion of a new Human Resource Strategy 
that covers all 3 entities despite the outstanding finalisation 
of the legal merger.

 In the same breath, a Strategic Plan integrating all 3 entities 
has also been developed for the 2014 – 2019 Medium-Term 
Strategic Framework period. The successful review of the 
organisational Information & Communication Technology 
(ICT) Strategy that takes onboard the operational needs 
of the COH WHS and Dinokeng – which were previously on 
the system of the Department of Economic Development – 
marked another critical milestone and the plans.

As indicated above that the overall performance percentage 
for the period under review was 89.5% in terms of hard 
numbers, 17 out of 19 indicators. It must be noted that in 
respect to the target on an unqualified audit, this has been 
achieved for the financial year 2013/2014. 

Consequently, only 2 targets can be confirmed as having not 
been achieved, namely, the 100% completed development of 
picnic sites as well as the 100% completion of an upgrade 
of the amphitheatre facilities to host outdoors events. While 
the picnic sites target is anticipated to be completed during 
the first quarter of the new financial year – following the 
necessary interventions designed to unlock blockages – the 
target on the amphitheatre will not be achieved due to original 
costs having escalated beyond available resources.

Internal engagements are however, underway on remedial 
action in a bid to potentially salvage the situation given the 
critical importance of this infrastructure development project. 
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Progress Made Towards the Achievement of Targets

Performance Indicator Annual Target Actual Validated Out-
put against Planned 
Target

Variance/deviation from 
Planned Output and 
actual output

Reason for Variance/
Comment on Deviation

Percentage completion 
of upgrade of Maropeng 
Interpretation 
Centre-Hominid House by 
March 2014

40% (Appointment of the 
service provider

40% (Appointment of the 
service provider)

Target achieved. Please 
see pages 6 -7 of the 
Minutes of the MAL Special 
Board Meeting 

None

Percentage completion 
of development of visitor 
activity facilities to attract 
more visitors to  Maropeng 
(Picnic sites) by March 2014

100% (Sign off / handover 
of picnic sites)

40% (Appointment of the 

service provider)

Target missed by 60% There were project 
management challenges 
with the delivery of this 
target. This project is 
targeted for completion by 
April 2014

Percentage completion 
of upgrade of the 
amphitheatre facilities to 
host outdoors events by 
March 2014

100 % (Sign off/handover) 30% (Preliminary designs 
are provided in the Stage 4 
Concept Report)

Target missed by 70% Achievement hampered 
by costs escalating above 
available budgets during 
course of implementation. 
Discussions underway 
to determine the most 
economical way forward.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Performance Indicator Annual Target Actual Validated Out-
put against Planned 
Target

Variance/deviation from 
Planned Output and 
actual output

Reason for Variance/
Comment on Deviation

Percentage finalisation of 
the architectural designs 
for the upgrade of the hotel 
by March 2014

100% (Completion of 
architectural designs)

100% (Completion of 
architectural designs)

Target achieved. Please 
see pages 52 - 66 of 
the Framework For 
Architectural And Quantity 
Surveying Services For 
The Expansion Of The 
Maropeng Interpretation 
Centre Complex Concept 
Report

None

Number of schools 
sponsored to visit 
Maropeng and Sterkfontein 
by March 2014

10 10 Target achieved  None

Number of fossil site 
inspection reports by 
March 2014

2 2 Target achieved None

Number of water 
monitoring reports 
produced by March 2014

2 2 Reports from service 
provider CSIR (Council 
for Scientific Industrial 
Research)

Target achieved None

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Notes to the Annual Financial Statement
For the year ended 31 March 2014
Performance Indicator Annual Target Actual Validated Out-

put against Planned 
Target

Variance/deviation from 
Planned Output and 
actual output

Reason for Variance/
Comment on Deviation

Percentage completion 
of development of visitor 
activity facilities to attract 
more visitors to the Cradle 
of Humankind World 
Heritage Site by March 
2014

50% of Phase 1 (15km of a 
total 30km completed)

57% (17kms) of Mountain 
Bike Trail completed

Target exceeded by 7% 
(2km)

The project management 

processes employed for 

this project enabled us to 

achieve 2 extra km against 

the planned target

Number of people 
employed on the ‘Working 
For Fire’ Project in the COH 
WHS area by March 2014

25 26 Target exceeded by 1 

employee

Workload provided an 

opportunity to employ one 

more person than originally 

planned, as part of the 

partnership with DEA / 

‘Working on Fire’ project

Number of people 
employed at Maropeng and 
Sterkfontein Interpretation 
Centres by March 2014

110 113 This target fluctuates in 

terms of resignations 

and new appointees 

at Maropeng and 

Sterkfontein. The current 

number is 113 employees

This target fluctuates in 

terms of resignations 

and new appointees at 

Maropeng and Sterkfontein 

determined according to 

human resource capacity 

needs at a given time 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Notes to the Annual Financial Statement
For the year ended 31 March 2014
Performance Indicator Annual Target Actual Validated Out-

put against Planned 
Target

Variance/deviation from 
Planned Output and 
actual output

Reason for Variance/
Comment on Deviation

Number of visitors visiting 
the COH WHS by March 
2014 

1 517 390 1 552 880 Target exceeded by 35,490 
visitors

The arrival figures can 
partly be attributed to 
the improved general 
popularity of the area that 
incorporates Lion and 
Rhino Park, lodges and 
other attractions

Total revenue (R millions) 
generated from visitors per 
annum  by March 2014

834.90 859.10 Target exceeded by R24.2 
million

Increase in revenue 
is consistent with the 
increase in arrivals 

Average length of stay of 
visitors per annum (Days) 
by March 2014

2 2 Target achieved None

Number of 5-year Strategic 
Plans for the period 
2014-2019 approved by 31 
March 2014

1 Strategic Plan 
(2014-2019)

2 Strategic Plan 
(2014-2019)

Target achieved None

Number of Annual 
Performance Plans for 
the period a 3 year period 
developed by 31 March 
2014

1 Annual Performance Plan 
for the period 2014/15-
2016/17

1 Annual Performance 
Plan for the period 
2014/15-2016/17

Target achieved None

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



111

Performance Indicator Annual Target Actual Validated Out-
put against Planned 
Target

Variance/deviation from 
Planned Output and 
actual output

Reason for Variance/
Comment on Deviation

Number of organisational 
Quarterly Performance 
Reports by March 2014

4 4 Target achieved None

Number of ICT Strategies 
reviewed per annum

1 Strategy reviewed and 
updated

1 Strategy reviewed and 
updated

Target achieved None

Number of Clean Audits in 
terms of the Auditor-Gen-
erals report per annum

1 Unqualified Audit report Report due at the end of 
the audit process

Report due at the end of 
the audit process

Report due at the end of 
the audit process
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